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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Odisha Power Generation Corporation Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the Standalone Financial Statements of Odisha Power Generation Corporation Limited(“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31** March 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive loss), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then
ended, and Notes to the financial statements including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information(herein after referred to as “Standalone Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended ("Ind
AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March
31, 2023, and its profit and other comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities of the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI), together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Emphasis of Matter

Inviting attention Note No 35 (vi), Thermal power plants generate ash, depending on the quantity & quality
of coal consumed by it. Since it pollutes the environment, “Ministry of Environment, Forest and Climate
Change” has prescribed 100% utilization in phased manner.

The company has adopted ash utilization policy and various modes of utilization are ash supply to
manufacturing units of bricks, asbestos, construction of roads, filling of low lying areas, mine voids and
raising the height of ash pond dyke.

As per information and explanations given to us 1,46,30,597 MT of ash remained unutilized as at 31% March
2023, which were produced during the process of generation of electricity and it is mandatory to dispose
off, utilize the ash, over a period of time, in terms of the notification no S.0. 5481(E) Dated 31.12.2021 &
notification no S.0. 6169(E) dated 30.12.2022, for which the company will incur certain expenditure over a
period of 10 years.

In terms of accounting policy ( para2.7), thereis no present obligation to utilize the remaining 1,46,30,597
metric ton of ash during the financial year 2022-23, which is to be disposed/utilized during next 10 years
and its cost is not ascertainable as no reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation,
company could not provide the cost of disposing/utilization of ash, to its profit & loss account during the
financial year 2022-23 and such expenses will be charged to profit & loss accounts as and when it will be
incurred.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
Key Audit Matters:

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit
of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, is not applicable to the Company as it is an unlisted company.
Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis of financial
performance highlights; Board’s report including Annexure to Board'’s Report, Business Responsibility Report,
Report on Corporate Governance, Shareholders information and other information in Integrated Annual Report
but does not include the Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance and conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there s a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the full Annual report which is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditors'
report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter
to those charged with governance.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Sec 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) prescribed under Sec 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015,
asamended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provision of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent ; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternate but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatement can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management'’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in

aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone

financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)

planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of

any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with the governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government
interms of Section 143(11) of the Act, and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company
as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, we give in
“Annexure A” to this report, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said Order to
the extent applicable.

2. In compliance to the directions of the Comptroller and Auditor-General of Indija (CAG) under Section 143(5) of
the Act, we give in “Annexure B” and “Annexure C” to this report statement on the matters specified therein.
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3. Asrequired by Section143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(]

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive loss), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules 2015 as amended

Section 164(2) of the Act regarding disqualification of Directors is not applicable to the Company by
virtue of Notification No. G.S.R. 463(E) dated 05.06.2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Govt. of India.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Sta ndalone Financial
Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in “Annexure D”

As per Notification No. GSR 463(E) dated 5 June 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government of India, and Section 197 of the Act is not applicable to the Government Companies.
Accordingly, reporting in accordance with requirement of provisions of section 197(16) of the Act is
not applicable to the Company.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us;

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Standalone
Financial Statements. Refer Note- 39(b) to the Standalone Financial Statements;

As explained to us the company has not entered into any derivative contract and has not foreseen any
material losses on long term contracts, hence no provision has been made on this account.

Since the company do not have to transfer any amount to the Investor Education & Protection Fund as
required under section 125 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013 (previously Sec. 205C of Companies Act,
1956), delay in transferring any amount to the Fund does not arise.

()The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to accounts, no funds (which are material either individ ually or in the aggregate)
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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(ii)The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to accounts, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(iii)Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause d(i) and d(ii) of Rule 11(e) , contain any material misstatement.

e. Asstatedin Note 18(iv) to the financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Company has proposed
dividend for the year which is subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting. The amount of dividend proposed is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act to the extent it
applies to declaration of dividend.

f.  Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account using
accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the
Company w.e.f. April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

For M/s Singh Ray Mishra & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 318121E

BiGshas

(CA Jiten Kumar Mishra)
Partner
Membership No.052796

UDIN- 23052796BGWWSW4808

Place: Bhubaneswar
Date: June 28th, 2023
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ANNEXURE — A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulator
even date to the members of Odisha Power G
Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023.

i a) (A) The Company has maintained records showing particulars,
situation of its major portion of property,

model, type, serial number and identification numbers etc. of such assets.

Continuation Sheet

Y Requirements’ section of our report of
eneration Corporation Limited on the Standalone Financial

including quantitative details and
plant and equipment, which needs to be updated by giving make,

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property,
accordance with this programme, major portion of property,
the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such
of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the s

property, plant and equipment.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis

records of the Company,
except as follows:

plant and equipment. In
plant and equipment were verified during
verification. In our opinion, this periodicity
ize of the Company and the nature of its

of our examination of the

the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company,

SI No. | Description of Property Value in | Held in the name | Whether promoter, | Period held | Reason for not
Crores of Director or  their | indicate being held in name
(Subject relative employee range, of company
to Note) where
appropriate
1 Banahrapali, Bargad, Permissive No 1997 Permissive
Telenpali, Kusuraloi, 5.51 possession of possession for
Khadam, Sahajbahal. ; Government non-forest use
revenue forest received on
Area 226.46 Acres
e el land. 03.04.1998
2 Telenpali ,Banahrapali Permissive In favour of previous 1997 Permissive
0ssession of shareholder M/s ossession for
(Area 69.83 Acres ) B N / P
Government AES, 1B Valley non-forest use
revenue forest Corporation, received on
land. Banharpali 03.04.1998
3 MGR Line Land, Hemtir 23.53 IDCO, No 2014- Lease agreement
Tahasil, Sundargarh Dist. Bhubaneswar 2019 between IDCO &
Private Land ( Area 77.50 OPGC under
Acres ) process
4 MGR Line Land, Hemtir IDCO, No 2016- -do-
Tahasil, Sundargarh Dist. Bhubaneswar 2018
Govt. Land ( Area 19.10
Acres )
5 Kumbharbandh Ash Pond 211 Handing over No 1996 Possession Letter
Area 452.00 Acres) possession of received on
AR 45200 Arres Reservoir Land 30.12.1996
6 Ash Pipe Line 5.06 Permission  to No 2016 Row  Permission
use vide letter no.
(Area 50.92 Acres) 871 W 19
4.2016 J
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7 MGR Forest Land 32.04 Permission  to No 2015- Permissive
(Area 428.09 Hikes] use 2017 possession for
non-forest use
received on

10.01.2020

8 Reserve Forest (Area 6.14 Permission to No 1987 Permissive
313.69 Acres) use Possession on
21.11.87 (As being
Forest Land, no

Title Deed)
i IS SN GO N Lo, SRR

NOTE:- In absence of individually item wise gross carrying value of land, value at s no,. 1,2,5&7 have
been taken from the records i.e allotment letters etc, of the Government of Odisha. In case of item sl no.
3,4, 6 & 8 proportionate average value have been considered for reporting.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use assets)
and intangible assets during the year,

ii. a) The inventories have been physically verified by the Management during the financial year. In our opinion
and according to the information and explanations given to us, the procedures of physical verification of
inventories followed by the management are generally reasonable and adequate in commensurate with the

size and nature of the business. Discrepancies on physical verification noticed are less than 10% in the
aggregate in the each class of inventories,

b) During the year the company has been sanctioned working capital limit in excess of Rs.5 crores, in
aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assts. Qua rterly returns filed by the company with
the bank are not in agreement with the books of account and those are set out below:

Name of the | Aggregate Nature  of | Quarter Amount  of | Amount of Diﬁ‘erence—]
Bank working Current Ended working working (Rs. Crore)
capital limits | Assets capital capital  as | (C=B-A)
sanctioned offered as disclosed as | per Books of | ‘¢’
(Rs. Crore) Security per quarterly | Accounts
statements (Rs.  Crore)
(Rs. Crore) ‘A’ | ‘B’
Union Bank 500 June 30, 461.63 466.14 4.51
of India 2022
Union Bank 500 September 461.04 459.61 (1.43)
of India Refer Note | 30, 2022
Union Bank 500 Below December 450.25 450.56 0.31
of India 31,2022
Union Bank 500 March 31, | 1,109.95 1,112.75 2.80
of India 2023 ]




SINGH RAY MISHRA & coO.

iii.

NOTE-:

Security: Cash Credit Facility is secured by First exclusive Hypothecation Charge on Raw materials, Consumable Spares
and Book Debts of Unit 1&2 and Unit 384 and Second exclusive Charge on all the immovable and movable assets

created out of the Term Loan from PFC Ltd,REC Ltd & Indian Bank and also immovable properties charged to PFC
Ltd,REC Ltd & Indian Bank.

Cash Credit (CC) Facility, with sanctioned limit of Rs. 500.00 Crore including STL of Rs.100.00 Crore and Bank Guarantee
Rs.32.00 Crore, availed from Union Bank of India to meet the Working Capital requirement of the Company.

The Company has an investment in equity shares of Odisha Coal and Power Limited (OCPL a joint venture
jointly controlled entity) amounting to Rs. 217.23 Crore as at 31% March 2023, which has been brought
forward from previous year.

a) (A) Further furnished Corporate Guarantee, security to joint venture company which are as follows :
(Rs. In Crore)

Particulars Guarantees Security Loans Advances in
nature of loans

Aggregate amount ranted/provided during the year
- Subsidiaries
- Joint Ventures Nil -
- Associates

- Others

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above cases
- Subsidiaries
- Joint Ventures 134.56 g s Az
- Associates
- Others

=

(B) Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanation given
to us, the company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans and guarantees or security
to parties other than subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates.

b) Inrespect ofthe aforesaid investment, guarantees, securities and loans, the terms and conditions under
which such investment were made, guarantees provided, securities provided, loans were granted, and
based on the available information and explanation, these are not prejudicial to the company’s interest.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the company, it is observed that, during the year no loan or advances in the nature of loan,
given to its associates or joint venture company.

d) There are no amounts of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted to companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships or any other parties which are overdue for more than ninety days.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the company, there is no loan given falling due during the year, which has been renewed or
extended or fresh loans given to settle the overdue of existing loans given to the same party.

Continuation Sheet
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f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records, it is observed that, the company has not granted any loan or advances in the nature of loan to

promoters and related parties, either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period
of repayment.

iv. Section 185 of the Act regarding loans to directors is not applicable to the Company by virtue of Notification
No. G.S.R. 463 (E) dated 05.06.2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Govt. of India. In our opinion
and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has complied with the
provisions of Section 186 of the Act with respect to the loans, investments, guarantee and security made.

v. The company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the
meaning of Section 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and rules framed there under to the extent notified.

vi.  The Central Government has prescribed for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the
Act, read with Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules 2014. On the basis of limited review of the books
of accounts maintained by the Company, we are of the opinion that prima facie, the relevant records are
maintained. However, we have not carried out a detailed examination of the same to determine whether
they are accurate and complete.

vii. a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues including GST, Provident fund, Employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax,
custom duty, Excise Duty, VAT, cess, Electricity Duty, & other material statutory dues with the appropriate
authorities, and there are no undisputed statutory dues as at 31 March 2023 outstanding for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the following dues of Sales tax, Service tax and
Income Tax have not been deposited by the Company on account of disputes:

Name of the | Nature of | Period to | Total Amount Forum where dispute
Statute dues which the | amount of | deposited is pending
amount demand Rs. in Crore
relates Rs. in Crore
Orissa Sales Tax | Sales Tax FY-1992-93 0.14 0.14 Sales Tax Tribunal,
Act & 1993-94 Odisha
1994-95 0.01 0.01 Sales Tax Tribunal,
Odisha
1996-97 0.01 Nil Sales Tax Tribunal,
Odisha, remanded to
assessing authority
1997-98 0.002 0.001 Sales Tax Tribunal,
Odisha, allowed the
appeal and the
matter is pending for
correction
Income Tax | Income Tax High Court of Orissa
Act,1961 2007-08 0.63 Nil
2005-06 & 0.74 Nil CIT(A),BBSR
2006-07
2014-15 0.21 0.36 CIT(A),BBSR
2016-17 1.30 0.10 CIT(A),BBSR

A €
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CIT(A), National
Faceless Appeal

2018-19 0.15 0.15
Centre

2014-16 0.17 NIL CIT(A)
Bhubaneswar
Asst/Dy
Commissioner,
Central Tax & Central
Excise

viii. According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records
of the company, the company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded

as income in the books of account, in the tax assessment under the Income-Tax Act ,1961 as income
during the year,

I,

Finance Act,
1994

Service Tax 2016-18 1.48 0.25

4.842

standalone financial statement of the company, we report that the Company has not utilised funds raised
on short-term basis for long-term purposes.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds

from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures.

X. (&) The company has not raised any money by way of Initial Public Offer or Further Public Offer (including
debt instrument). Accordingly this clause is not applicable,

However, out of the said issue of equity share, the company could not allot the equity shares of Rs. 15
Crore within 60 days from the date of receipt of application money.

During the current financial year the company could utilize Rs 3.92 Crores out of Rs 38 Crore received
towards FGD project Unit 3 & 4 and the balance is kept in the form of fixed deposit.
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Xi.

Xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

Xvii.

Xviii.

XiX.

accepted auditing practices in India, no case of fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company by its
officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the company, carried out in accordance
with generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given
to us, a report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not required to be filed with the Central
Government. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(b) of the order is not applicable.

(c) The company has adopted the Whistle Blower policy during FY 2022-23 and as per the information and
explanation available to us, there are no whistle blower complaints received during the reporting year.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company and therefore
reporting under clause (xii) of the Order s not applicable.

as required by the applicable Indian accounting standards.

(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the
nature of its business,

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit issued to the Company during
the year till date in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based On our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with them and hence, provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to
the company.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(b) The Company has not conducted Non-Banking Financial/Housing Finance activities during the vyear.
Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve
Bank of India.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Group does not have any CIC. Accordingly,
the requirements of clause 3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

The company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the vear. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the
order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations
expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities
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and when they fall due.

Xx.  There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than ongoing projects
requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VIl to the Companies Act in compliance with second
proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) and
3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable for the year.

For M/s Singh Ray Mishra & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 318121E

Gt

(CA Jiten Kumar Mishra)
Partner
Membership No.052796

UDIN-23052796BGWWSW4808

e

Place: Bhubaneswar A RO
Date: June 28, 2023 7O/ currizazn \ 2



SINGH RAY MISHRA & CO.

ANNEXURE-B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 2 under
date to the members of Odisha Po

Continuation Sheet

‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even
wer Generation Corporation Limited on the Standalone Financial Statements for the

year ended 31 March 2023

No Direction Reply

1 | Whether the company has system in place to process all | All departments are covered under IT system called
the accounting transactions through IT system? If Yes, the | SAP ERP implemented in OPGC since 2016. FI&CO
implications of processing of accounting transaction | under SAP is used for accounting purpose.
outside IT system on the integrity of the accounts along
with the financial implications, if any, may be stated.

2 | Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or | There is no restructuring of an existing loan or case of
case or case of waiver/write off of debts/loans/interest/ waiver/write off of debts/loans/interest etc. made by
etc. made by a lender to the company due to the | the financial institution during the current financial
company'’s inability to repay the loan? If yes, the financial | year.
impact may be stated.

3 | Whether funds received/receivable for specific schemes During the current financial year under audit, funds
from central/state government or its agencies were received from the Government of Odisha as Equity
properly accounted for/utilized as per its term and h ital h b | df 4
conditions? List the cases of deviation. Share Capital have been REcReny atcounted et an

there is no deviation in its utilisation.
During the current financial year the company utilized
Rs. 3.92 Crores out of Rs 38 Crore received towards
FGD project Unit 3 & 4 and the balance s kept in the
form of fixed deposit.
Similarly Rs. 15 Crore has been received for pursuing
critical R & M works of Unit 1 & 2, out of which Rs. 7.5
Crores paid as advance to BHEL for R & M work and
balance amount kept in the form of fixed deposit.
Moreover, non-current financial liabilities (Note No:
20) includes Rs.1.86 crore payable to Government
(Received during earlier years from Govt. Of India
Non-conventional Energy for construction of Mini
Micro Hydel Projects)
For M/s Singh Ray Mishra & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 318121E
l\ﬁ'sﬁ-ﬂ’
& /
(CA Jiten Kumar Mishra)
Partner
Membership No.052796
UDIN-23052796BGWWSW4808
Place: Bhubaneswar R4
Date: June 28t 2023 4
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Odisha Power Generation Corporation Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31,2023

(Rupees in Cr)

; Note As at March 31,| As at March 31,
Particulars
No. 2023 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
a. Property, Plant and Equipment 3 9,438.30 9,563.70
b. Capital work-in-progress - Tangible 4 362.08 300.92
c. Other Intangible assets 5 6.17 6.07
d. Intangible assets under development 6 - -
e. Financial Assets
(i) Investments 7 217.23 217.23
(ii) Loans 8 2.18 1.62
(iii) Others 8 27.26 25.01
(iii) Trade receivables 11 - -
f. Deferred tax assets (Net) 22 - 133.18
g. Other non-current assets 9 71.64 265.37
Total non-current assets 10,124.86 10,513.10
Current assets
a. Inventories 10 217.95 212.11
b. Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 11 1,304.55 570.38
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 12 3.38 2.93
(iii) Bank Balances other than (ii) above 12 174.31 220.15
(iv) Loans 13 172 2.66
(v) Others 14 8.71 9.65
¢. Current Tax Assets (Net) 15 28.60 20.60
d. Other current assets 16 84.39 38.64
Total Current Assets 1,823.60 1,077.12
TOTAL ASSETS 11,948.46 11,590.22
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
a. Equity Share capital 47 2,067.50 2,029.50
b. Other Equity 18 1,711.14 862.30
Total equity 3,778.64 2,891.80
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
a. Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade Payables
- Total Qutstanding dues of micro - =
and small enterprises
- Total Outstanding dues of creditors other - -
than micro and small enterprises
(i) Borrowings 19 6,132.46 6,518.00
(iii) Other financial liabilities 20 2.22 2.91
b. Provisions 2 78.17 71.16
C. Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 22 150.81 wl
Total non-current Liabilities = O 6,363.66 6,592.07
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Odisha Power Generation Corporation Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31,2023

(Rupees in Cr)
2 |Current liabilities
a. Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade Payables
- Total Outstanding dues of micro 23 3.57 3.10
and small enterprises
- Total Outstanding dues of creditors other 23 292.57 160.84
than micro and small enterprises
(ii) Borrowings 24 1,242.84 1,492.19
(iii) Other financial liabilities 25 162.88 345.77
b. Other current liabilities 26 81.72 81.30
C. Provisions 27 22.58 23.15
d. Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 15 - -
Total Current Liabilities 1,806.16 2,106.35
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 11,948.46 11,590.22
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 1-46

Interms of our report attached.
For Singh Ray Mishra & Co
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg No: 318121F

Gt

(CA 1. K. Mishra)

Partner

Membership No. 052796
Place : Bhubaneshwar

Date : Juxe M}, 2023
UDIN -, 2305279 ¢ pe,wn sw ey (

ok

Director
DIN: 09235054

(Basanta Kumar Sahoo )
Company Secretary

Hrudaya Kamal Jena )

ﬁ

For and on behalf of the Board

-
(Ajit Kuma Panda)
Chief Financial Officer

(P.k-Mohapatra)
Managing Director
DIN: 07800722
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Odisha Power Generation Corporation Limited
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Rupees in Cr)

—

Particulars Note No. Yearanded Veargtiged
March 31, 2023| March 31, 2022
I |[Revenue from Operations 28 4,213.80 2,852.13
Il |Other Income 29 103.38 14.65
Il [Total Income (1 + 11) 4,317.18 2,866.79
IV |Expenses
a. Cost of materials consumed 30 1,771.56 1,564.42
b. Employee benefit expenses 31 113.89 99.55
c. Finance costs 32 655.52 733.56
d. Depreciation and amortization expenses 33 301.32 301.97
f. Other expenses 35 348.42 301.49
Total expenses (IV), 3,190.72 3,000.98
V' |Profit/ (loss) before exceptional items and tax (Il - IV) 1,126.46 (134.20)
VI [Exceptional Items - -
VIl (Profit/(loss) before tax (V-viI) 1,126.46 (134.20)
VIIl|Tax Expenses:
(i) Current tax - -
(i) Tax of earlier years 0.41 -
(iii) Deferred tax 286.06 (31.37)
Total tax expenses 286.47 (31.3
IX | Profit/(loss) for the Year (VII -VIlI) 839.99 (102.83)
X |Other Comprehensive Income / (Expenses)
(i) Items that will not be reclassitied to protit and loss
Remeasurements ot the detined benetit plans (8.20) (3.38)
(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified
to profit and loss 2.06 0.85
(i) Items that will be reclassified to profit and loss = -
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to ) i
profit and loss
Total Comprehensive Income / (Expenses) for the Year (6.14) (2.53)
] Total Compre.hf-_\nswe Income / (Expenses) for t.he Year 833.85 (105.36)
(IX+X) (Comprising Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
Equity shares of par value of Rs. 1000 /- each
XII (Earnings per Equity Share:- Basic and diluted (Rs) 37 524.90 (56.42)
Xll|Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 1-46

Fir

(CA

Partner
Membership No. 052796
Place : Bhubaneshwar

Date: JTume mlng
VDIN [2305279e pgrimsnlisog

In terms of our report attached.
For Singh Ray Mishra & Co
Chartered Accountants

wg No: 318121E
]

LK Mishia)

Bk

(Basanta Kumar Sahoo )
Company Secretary

(Hrudaya Kamal Jena )

Director
DIN:09235054

For and gn behglf of the Board

A

(Ajit Kumgr Pahda)

Chief Financial Officer

(P.K.V\’%patra}

Managing Director
DIN: 07800722
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Odisha Power Generation Corporation Limited
‘Standalone Statement of Cash Flow for the Year ended March 31, 2023

(Rupees in Cr)

-

L

Pl Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2023| March 31, 2022
A [Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit before taxes 1,126.46 (134.20)
Adjustments for: -
Depreciation and amortization expense 301.32 301.97
Provision for impairment - -
(Profit)/loss on sale of Fixed Assets 0.18 0.07
Foreign currency fluctuation gain/(loss) 0.01 0.01
Gain(/Loss) on Physical Inventory-spares - 0.05
Gain/(loss) on Physical Inventory-ACB Coal (0.01) 0.54
Interest and finance charges 653.51 733.34
Interest Income from investment & deposits (13.00) (5.12)
Dividend received (73.32)
CSR expenditure 1.21 0.96
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,996.37 897.60
Adjustments for:
Trade receivable (734.17) (117.43)
Inventory 72.53 (21.52)
Other financial and non financial assets (44.98) 29.52
Trade and other payables 132.20 41.72
Other financial and non financial liabilities (190.81) 68.64
Cash generated from operations 1,231.14 898.53
Taxes Paid (8.41) (2.70)
CSR expenditure (1.21) (0.96)
Net cash flow from operating activities 1,221.52 894.87
B | Cash flows from Investing Activities:
Payments for purchase of fixed assets (109.60) (349.72)
Interest received 11.38 3.92
Payment for FD 45.85 (110.44)
Payment for Investment - (20.37)
Dividend including Dividend Distribution Tax 73.32 -
Net cash used in investing activities 20.94 (476.61)
C |Cash flows from Fina ncing Activities:
Issue of shares 38.00 207.00
Share application money received 15.00
Dividends paid to owners of the Company - -
Proceeds from borrowings (634.89) 123.59
Interest paid (660.10) (746.67)
Repayment of other financial liabilities
Net cash flows from financing activities (1,241.99) (416.08)
Net Increase/(decrease) in cash or cash equivalen 0.46 2.18
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of th 2.93 s, 075
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the Year )\ A 3.38. «;LMLK( 2.93
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements Q‘W No. 1-46 %ﬁ-}___\?}/CL;“,_T“ N
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Odisha Power Generation Corporation Limited
Standalone Statement of Cash Flow for the Year ended March 31. 2023

()  Cash and cash equivalents consist of cheques, drafts, stamps in hand, balances with banks and
deposits with original maturity of upto three months.
(i) Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents is shown at Note 12

(iii) Figures in brackets are cash outflows / incomes as the case may be.

In terms of our report attached.
For Singh Ray Mishra & Co

For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No: 318121 -

@ -r-—"'""gr gdzkh_s -
(CAJ. K. Mishra) (Basanta Kumar Sahoo ) (Ajit Kbimar Panda)
Partner Company Secretary Chief Finantial Officer
Membership No. 052796
Place : Bhubaneshwar
Date : JTune 284 2023 :

¢ (Hrudaya Kamal Jena ) (P.K.Mohapatra)
Director Managing Director
DIN: 09235054 DIN: 07800722




Notes to Financial Statements

1.

2.1.

2.2

General Corporate Information: Odisha Power Generation Corporation Limited (“the Company”) is
a Private Limited Company incorporated in India (CIN: U401040R19845GC001429) with its registered
office at Bhubaneswar, Odisha, India. The Company primarily generates and makes bulk supply of
power by establishing, operating & maintaining power generating stations. These financial
statements were approved for issue in accordance with the Resolution of the Board of Directors on
12.06.2023.

Significant Accounting Policies: The significant accounting policies applied by the Company in
preparation of its financial statements are listed below. Such accounting policies have been applied
consistently to all the periods presented in these financial statements and preparing the opening Ind
AS financial statement as at April 1, 2015 for purpose of transitions to Ind AS, unless otherwise
indicated.

Basis of preparation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS and Schedule Ill of the Companies Act, 2013: The financial
statements of the Company is prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended)
read with section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 and presentation requirements of Schedule i
to the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended).

(ii) Basis of Measurement: The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention with the exception of certain assets and liabilities that are required to be carried
at fair values by Ind AS. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date

(iii) Functional and presentation currency: The functional and presentation currency of the
Company is Indian Rupee (“INR”) which is the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the Company operates. Figures are taken from the source and rounded to the
nearest crores (up to two decimals), except when indicated otherwise.

(iv) Classification of Current / Non-Current Assets and liabilities: All assets and liabilities have
been classified as current or non-current as per Company’s operating cycle and other criteria
set out in Schedule-lll of the Companies Act 2013. Based on the nature of business, the
Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or
noncurrent classification of assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
classified as non-current on net basis.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures: The accounting policies adopted in the preparation

of the Financial Statements are consistent with those followed in the preparation of the Company’s
annual financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2023, except for the adoption of new
standard effective as of 1st April, 2023. The Company has not early adopted any other standard,
interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective.

Recent pronouncements:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On
March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2022, applicable from April 1st, 2023, as below:




(i) In Ind AS 101 - First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards: In Appendix B, a new
paragraph B14 has been inserted which states that:
Paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12, Income Taxes exempt an entity from recognizing a deferred
tax asset or liability in particular circumstances. Despite this exemption, at the date of transition
to Ind ASs, a first-time adopter shall recognize a deferred tax asset, to the extent it is possible that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilized.

and a deferred tax liability for all deductible and taxable temporary differences
associated with:

(a) right-of-use assets and lease liabilities; and
(b)decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities and the corresponding amounts
recognized as part of the cost of the related asset.”

(i) In Ind AS 102 - Share Based payment: The amendment is essentially a clarification and the
Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial
statements.

(iii) Ind AS 103 - Business Combinations-: Para 13 of Appendix C states the disclosure requirements
under Ind AS 103. Clause (b) states that the disclosure of the date on which the transferor obtains
control of the transferee shall be made. This has been substituted with “the date on which the
transferee obtains control of the transferor.”

(iv)Ind AS 107 - Financial Instruments Disclosures: Addition to para 21 of the Ind AS has been made
which says that “Information about the measurement basis for financial instruments used in
preparing the financial statements is material accounting policy information and is to be
disclosed.”

(V) Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements: ‘Paragraph 10’ which states the complete set of
Financial Statements, in item (e), for the words “significant accounting policies”, the words
“material accounting policy information”, shall be substituted. Para 117 (Disclosure of Accounting
Policy Information) is substituted with; “An entity shall disclose material accounting policy
information. Accounting policy information is material if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general-purpose financial statements make on the
basis of those financial statements.” Para 117A to 117E is added to explain the materiality of
accounting information. Para 117A to 117F is added to explain the materiality of accounting
information.

(vi) Ind AS 8 - in paragraph 5, for the definition of change in accounting estimate starting with the
words A change in and ending with words “correction of errors”, the following shall be
substituted:

“Accounting estimates are monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty.”




2.3 Use of estimates and critical accounting judgments: These financial statements have been prepared
based on estimates and assumptions in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles
of Ind AS. In preparation of financial statements, the Company makes judgments, estimates and
assumptions that may impact the application of accounting policies and the reported value of assets,
liabilities, income, expenses, and related disclosures concerning the items involved as well as
contingent assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date. The estimates and management’s
judgments are based on historical experience and other factors considered reasonable and prudent
in the circumstances. They are formulated when the carrying amount of assets and liabilities is not
easily determined from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and any future periods affected.
Significant judgements and estimates relating to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, while
evaluating / assessing useful lives of property, plant and equipment, impairment of property, plant
and equipment, impairment of investments, provision for employee benefits and other provisions,
recoverability of deferred tax assets, commitments and contingencies is considered. Key sources of
estimation of uncertainty at the reporting date, which may cause a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for future years are provided in at para 2.22.

2.4 Cash and cash equivalent: Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprises of cash at banks,
cash in hand and short-term deposits with original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

2.5 Cash Flow Statement: Cash flow is reported using the indirect method, where by profit / (loss) before
extra-ordinary items and tax is adjusted for the effect of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals
oraccruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash
and cash equivalents as defined above is the net of outstanding bank overdrafts. In the balance sheet, the
bank overdrafts are shown under borrowings in current liabilities.

2.6 Investments in subsidiaries, associates, and joint ventures

SUBSIDIARY - A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by another entity. Control is achieved when the
Company, has power over the investee, is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and has the ability to use its power to affect its returns. The Company reassesses
whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circu mstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control listed above.

ASSOCIATE - An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence. Whereas significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

JOINT VENTURES - A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arra ngement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

Investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are measured at cost in accordance with Ind AS
27 - Separate Financial Statements, less any impairment in net recoverable value that has been recognised
in profit or loss.

i




2.7 Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets (Other than goodwill)

2.7
(i)

vi,
Vii.

viii.

2.732
(i)

273
(i)

(iii)

Tangible Assets:

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) held for use in the production or/ and supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes, are measured at cost, less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Such cost comprises purchase price
(net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebate etc.), borrowing cost, and any cost
directly attributable to bringing the assets to its location and condition for intended use.
Expenditure incurred on development of freehold land is capitalized as part of the cost of the
land. Deposits, payments / liabilities made provisionally towards compensation, rehabilitation
and other expenses relatable to land in possession are treated as cost of land.

In case of self-constructed assets, cost includes the costs of all materials used in construction,
direct labour, allocation of overheads, borrowing costs if any attributable to such
construction.

Deposit works/cost plus contracts are accounted for on the basis of statements of account
received from the contractors and verified & accepted by the company.

In the case of assets put to use, where final settlement of bills with contractors are yet to be
effected, capitalization is done on provisional basis subject to necessary adjustment, if any, in
the year of final settlement.

Unsettled liabilities for price variation in case of contracts are accounted for on estimated
basis as per terms of the contracts.

Assets and systems common to more than one generating unit are capitalized on the basis of
engineering estimates / assessments.

Spare parts having unit value of more than Rs 5 |akh that meets the criteria for recognition as
PPE are recognized as PPE. Other spare parts are carried as inventory and recognised in the
statement of profit and loss on consumption.

Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets acquired are reported at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets having finite useful lives are amortized
over their estimated useful lives, whereas intangibles assets having infinite useful lives is not
amortized. The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of
each annual reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for
on a prospective basis.

Subsequent expenditure:

Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or recognized as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the entity and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Expenditure on major maintenance or repairs including cost of replacing the parts of assets
and overhaul costs where it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will be available to the Company, are capitalized and the carrying amount of the item
so replaced is derecognized.

Similarly, overhaul costs associated with major maintenance are capitalized and depreciated

over their useful lives where it is probable that future economic benefits will be available and




any remaining carrying amounts of the cost of previous overhauls are derecognized.

(iv) The costs of the day-to-day servicing of PPE is recognized in the statement of profit and loss
as incurred.

2.7.4 Decommissioning costs

(i) The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of the asset after its use is
included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

2.7.5 Capital work-in-progress

(i) Expenditure incurred on construction of assets which are not ready for their intended use
are carried at cost less impairment (if any) under Capital Work-in- progress. The cost includes
purchase cost of materials / equipment’s duties and nonrefundable taxes, any directly
attributable costs and Interest on borrowings used to finance the construction of assets.

(ii) Capital expenditure on assets not owned by the company related to generation of electricity
business is reflected as a distinct item in capital work-in-progress till the period of completion
and ready for the intended use and, thereafter, under Property, plant and equipment.
However, similar expenditure for CSR / community development is charged off to revenue.

(iii) Expenses for assessment of new potential projects incurred till and for the purpose of making
investment decision are charged to revenue.

(iv) Expenses incurred relating to project, net of income earned during project development
stage prior to its intended use are considered as expenditure during construction / trial run
and disclosed under Capital-Work-In-Progress.

2.7.6 Depreciation and Amortization:

(i) Depreciation is recognised in statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the

estimated useful lives of each part of an item of PPE.

(ii) Freehold Land is not depreciated.

(iii) Premium paid on leasehold land including land development and rehabilitation expense are
amortized over 30 years by taking its useful life.

(iv) Capital expenditure on assets laid on land not owned by the company as mentioned above
is amortized over a period of its useful life.

(v) Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of assets, which is in

accordance with Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013 or based upon technical estimate made
by the Company.

(vi) Depreciation on the following assets is provided over estimated useful life as ascertained
based on internal assessment and independent technical evaluation that the useful lives as
best represent the period over which Company expects to use these assets. Hence the useful
lives for these assets are different from the useful life as prescribed under part C of Schedule
Il of the Companies Act 2013:

Tangible Assets:

Particulars Depreciation / amortization
Plant & Equipment | Overa period of 30 years
(BTG & BOP)

A
tn




MGR  Track and | Overa period of 30 years

Railway siding

Leasehold Land Over the lease period or 30 years whichever is less. In absence of
finalization of lease period, amortization made over a period of 30
years.

Ash Ponds Over remaining period of useful life, evaluated on the basis of
technical estimate made annually which includes the estimates of
generation, utilization and increase of capacity in future years.

Porta Cabin Over a period of five years

Tools and Tackles Over a period of five years

CMT Colony | Over a period of 30 Years

| Buildings

Intangible Assets

Computer software/ | Over a period of legal right to use subject to maximum ten years.

| Licenses

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

2.7.7
(i)

The estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each year end, with the effect
of any changes in estimate, accounted for on a prospective basis. Each component of an item
of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of
that item is depreciated separately if its useful life differs from the others components of the
asset.

PPE including tools and tackles costing up to Rs. 5,000 (Five Thousand Only) are fully
depreciated in the year in which it is for put to use,

Physical verification of Fixed Assets is undertaken in a phased manner by the management
over a period of three years. The discrepancies noticed, if any, are accounted for in the year
in which such differences are found

Disposal and derecognition of assets

An item of PPE and intangible asset is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of PPE is determined as the difference
between the proceeds from disposal, if any and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognized in profit or loss

2.8 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

(i)

(ii)

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of asset is
reviewed in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss if any.

Where an asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other
assets, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit (CGU) to
which the asset belongs. Thermal Power Plant and each Mini Hydel Project are separately
considered as cash generating units for determination of impairment of asset




(vi)

(vii)

Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are tested for impairment annually and
whenever there is an indication that the assets may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair valye less cost to sell and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to thejr present value using a
pre-tax discount rate, that reflects current market assessments of time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset for which the estimation of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

An impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss as and when the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of asset (or cash
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined if there had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or a cash
generating unit) in prior year.

Areversal of an impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss immediately.

2.9 Foreign Currency Transactions

(i)

(ii)

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in reporting currency i.e. Indian
Rupees, using the exchange rates prevailing on the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items are measured at historical
cost.

Exchange differences arising on monetary items are recognized in the statement of profit and
loss in the period in which they arise.

2.10 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Asset

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event which is expected to result in an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits which can be reliably estimated.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When appropriate, provisions are measured on a
discounted basis, the discount rate used is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money in that jurisdiction and the risks specific to that
liability.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past
events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the company or a
present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.
Contingent assets are possible assets that arise from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or maore uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial
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(i)

(i)

(ii)

2.11 Leases

(i)

(ii)

management. These are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately
reflected in the financial statements.
Onerous contracts

A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by
the Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations
under the contract. The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the
expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the
contract.

Restoration, rehabilitation and decommissioning

An obligation to incur restoration, rehabilitation and environmental costs arises when
environmental disturbance is caused by the development or ongoing production of power
and other manufacturing facilities.

If recognized, such costs are discounted to net present value and are provided for and a
corresponding amount is capitalized at the start of each project, as soon as the obligation to
incur such costs arises. These costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss over the
life of the operation through the depreciation of the asset and the unwinding of the discount
on the provision. The cost estimates are reviewed periodically and are adjusted to reflect
known developments which may have an impact on the cost estimates or life of operations.
The cost of the related asset is adjusted for changes in the provision due to factors such as
updated cost estimates, changes to lives of operations, new disturbance and revisions to
discount rates. The adjusted cost of the asset is depreciated prospectively over the lives of
the assets to which they relate. The unwinding of the discount is shown as finance and other
cost in the statement of profit or loss.

Environmental liabilities

Environment liabilities are recognized when the company becomes obliged, legally or
constructively to rectify environmental damage or perform remediation work.

Litigation

Provision is recognized once it has been established that the Company has a present
obligation based on consideration of the information which becomes available up to the date
on which the Company’s financial statements are finalized.

The Company determines whether an arrangement contains a lease by assessing whether

the fulfilment of a transaction is dependent on the use of a specific asset and whether the

transaction conveys the right to use that asset to the Company in return for payment. Where

this occurs, the arrangement is deemed to include a lease and is accounted for accordingly.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfers substantially

all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

The Company as lessee:

a. The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land, plant & equipment,
buildings and offices. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at the
inception of a contract. Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets




of the Company at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included
in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. For short-term leases, non-lease
components and lease of low value assets, the Company recognizes the lease rental
payments as an operating expense.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before
the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it
is reasonably certain that they will be exercised. The right-of-use assets are initially
recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for
any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any
initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, if any. An impairment loss is recognized where applicable, when
the carrying value of ROU assets of cash generating units exceeds it fair value or value in
use, whichever is higher.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. The lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the
future lease payments.

The Company as lessor:

d.

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease.

All other leases are classified as operating leases.

A lease is classified as a finance or an operating lease as applicable.

Operating lease: Rental income from operating leases is recognized in the statement of
profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease unless another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits
from the leased asset is diminished. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Finance lease: When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present value of the
minimum lease payments is recognized as a receivable. The difference between the gross
receivable and the present value of the receivable is recognized as an unearned finance
income. Lease income is recognized over the term of the lease using the net investment
method before tax, which reflects a constant periodic rate of return.

2.12 Inventories

(i)
(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Cost of Inventories includes purchase price, nonrefundable taxes & duties and other directly
attributable costs incurred in bringing the same to their present location and condition.
Inventories of construction materials, raw materials, stores, chemicals, spare parts and loose
tools are valued at lower of cost determined on weighted average basis and net realizable
value. Materials in transit and materials pending for inspection are valued at cost.

The diminution in the value of unserviceable, obsolete and surplus stores and spares is
ascertained on the basis of annual review and provided for in the statement of profit and loss.
Transit and handling losses /gain arises on physical verification including carpeting of coal are
included in the cost of coal. Carpeting of coal during pre-commissioning period is treated as
inventory and charged off to cost in the first year of operation.
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(v)

Handling losses including sludge of oil as per tompany norms are included in the cost of oijl.

2.13 Trade receivable

(i)
(ii)

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for sale of power in the ordinary course
of business.

Trade receivables are measured at their transaction price unless it contains a significant
financing component in accordance with Ind AS 115 (or when the entity applies the practical
expedient) or pricing adjustments embedded in the contract. Loss allowance for expected life
time credit loss is recognized on initial recognition.

2.14 Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities (together Financial Instruments) are recognized when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction cost that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial
recognition of financial asset or financial liabilities.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

a.

Financial assets at amortized cost: Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized
costs if these financial assets are held within a business model whose objective is to hold
these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the
financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Financial
assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial
assets are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and contractual term of the financial assets
give rise on specified days to cash flows that are solely payment of principals and the interest
on principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at Fair value through Profit or loss (FVTPL): Financial assets are measured
at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortized cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive item on initial recognition. The transaction cost directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are immediately recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company

Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are
subsequently measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest rate method.

b. Other financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method:

Equity instruments:

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognized at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Compound instruments:

The component parts of compound instruments (convertible instruments) issued by the
Company are classified separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the
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substance of the contractual arrangement. At the date of issue, the fair value of the
liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for a similar
non-convertible instrument. This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortized cost
basis using the effective interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the
instrument’s maturity date. The equity component is determined by deducting the
amount of the liability component from the fair value of the compound instrument as a
whole. This is recognized and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not
subsequently re-measured.
(v) Financial guarantee contract liabilities:
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated
as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:
* the amount of the obligation under the contract, as determined in accordance with IND AS
37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and
* the amount initially recognized less, where appropriate, cumulative amortization recognized
in accordance with the revenue recognition policies.
(vi) Derecognition of financial assets:
The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
(vii) Impairment of financial assets:
At each reporting date, the Company assess whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition. If, at the reporting date, the credit risk on a financial
instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. If the
credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime
expected credit losses. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust
the loss allowance at the reporting date is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in the statement
of profit and loss.
(vii)  Derecognition of financial liability:
The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire.
(ix) Offsetting financial instruments:
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business.
2.15 Borrowing cost
(i) Borrowing Costs comprise interest expenses, applicable gain / loss on foreign currency
borrowings in appropriate cases and other borrowing costs. Interest expense arising from
financial liabilities is accounted for under effective interest rate method.
(ii) Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of




(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

qualifying assets are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets is
substantially ready for their intended use.

A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use. The Company considers a period of twelve months or more as a
substantial period of time.

When the Company borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset,
the borrowing costs incurred are capitalised. When Company borrows funds generally and
uses them for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the capitalisation of the borrowing
costs is computed based on the weighted average cost of general borrowing that are
outstanding during the period and used for the acquisition, construction/exploration or
erection of the qualifying asset.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying assets for their intended uses are complete.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

2.16 Accounting for Government grants / Grants in Aid Government grants are recognized when there
is reasonable assurance that we will comply with the conditions attaching to them will be complied
and that the grants will be received.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

Government grants are recognized in the statement of profit and loss on a systematic basis
over the periods in which the Company recognizes as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants whose primary condition is that the Company should purchase, construct
or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognized in the balance sheet by setting up
the grant as deferred income.

Other government grants (grants related to income) are recognized as income over the
periods necessary to match them with the costs for which they are intended to com pensate,
on a systematic basis.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of providing immediate financial support within future related
costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Grants related to income are presented under other income in the statement of profit and
loss except for grants received in the form of rebate or exemption which are deducted in
reporting the related expense.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of interest is treated as a
government grant, measured as the difference between proceeds received and the fair value
of the loan based on prevailing market interest rates,

2.17 Employee Benefits
Short-term employee benefits:
Liability in respect of short-term employee benefit is recognized at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in respect of service rendered by employee in an accounting period.

Post-employment benefits:
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(i) Defined Contribution Plans: Those plans where the Company pays fixed contributions to a
fund managed by independent trust. Contributions are paid in return for services rendered
by employees during the year. The Company has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay employee benefits.
The Company pays fixed contribution to Provident Fund at predetermined ratesto a separate
trust, which invests the funds in permitted securities. The contributions to the fund for the
year are recognized as expense and are charged to the statement of profit and loss. The
obligation of the Company is to make such fixed contributions and to ensure a minimum rate
of return to the members as specified by the Government of India.

(ii) Defined Benefit Plans: Those post-employment benefit plans other than a defined
contribution plan. The gratuity schemes are funded by the Company and are managed by
separate trusts. The present values of these defined benefit plans are ascertained by an
independent Actuary on each balance sheet date using the Projected Unit Credit Method as
per requirement of Ind AS 19 — Employee Benefits. Re-measurement gains and losses of the
net defined benefit liability/ (asset) are recognized immediately in other comprehensive
income. The service cost, net interest on the net defined benefit liability / (asset) is treated
as a net expense within employment costs. Past service cost is recognized as an expense
when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs or when any related restructuring costs or
termination benefits are recognized, whichever is earlier.

The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the balance sheet represents the present
value of the defined-benefit obligation as reduced by the fair value plan assets.

Long-term employee benefits ( unfunded):

These benefits include liabilities towards leave benefits (including compensated absence which are

not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee

renders the related service) and two months last drawn salary to meet travelling expenses payable
in case of retirement on superannuation or death. The present value of obligation against long term
employee benefits is ascertained on each balance sheet date by an independent actuary using

Projected Unit Credit Method as per requirement of Ind AS 19 — Employee Benefits. All actuarial gains

and losses and past service cost are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the period in

which they arise.

As per the Company’s policy, part of the employees are paid six months last drawn salary as one-time

financial benefit toward pension on retirement. The present value of obligation against long term

employee benefits is ascertained on each balance sheet date by an independent actuary using

Projected Unit Credit Method as per requirement of Ind AS 19 — Employee Benefits. All actuarial gains

and losses and past service cost are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the period in

which they arise.

Expenses on leave travel concession, leave salary including pension contribution (employees on

deputation) are accounted for on cash basis following materiality concept.

2.18 Tax Expenses

(i) The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
net profit as reported in profit or loss because it excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are pever taxable
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(i)

(ii)

or deductible. The Company’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

A provision is recognised for those matters for which the tax determination is uncertain but
it is considered probable that there will be a future outflow of funds to a tax authority. The
provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amount expected to become payable.
The assessment is based on the judgement of tax professionals within the Company
supported by previous experience in respect of such activities and in certain cases based on
specialist independent tax advice.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and the amounts used for taxation purposes (tax
base), at the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilized

2.19 Revenue Recognition

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Effective 1 April 2018, the Company has adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” using the cumulative effect method, applied to the contracts that were not
completed as of 1 April 2018 and therefore the comparatives have not been restated and
continues to be reported as per Ind AS 18 “Revenue”.

The Company’s operations in India are regulated under the Electricity Act, 2003 and Odisha
Electricity Regulatory Commission (“OERC’) determines the major part of tariff for the power
plants.

Revenue from the sale of electrical energy which is regulated based on certain formulae and
parameters set out in tariff regulations issued from time to time. Tariff is based on the cost
incurred for a specific power plant and primarily comprises two components: capacity charge
i.e. a fixed charge, that includes depreciation, cost of capital, return on equity, interest on
working capital, operation & maintenance expenses, interest on loan and energy charge i.e.
a variable charge primarily based on fuel costs.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration that is specified in a contract with a
customer or is expected to be received in exchange for the products or services and excludes
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Company recognises revenue when (or as)
the performance obligation is satisfied, which typically occurs when (or as) control over the
products or services is transferred to a customer.

In the comparative period, revenue from the sale of energy was measured at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue was recognised when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership had been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the
consideration was probable, the associated costs could be estimated reliably, there was no
continuing management involvement, and the amount of revenue could be measured
reliably.

Revenue from sale of energy is accounted for based on tariff rates approved by the OERC
(except items indicated as provisional) or as modified by the orders of higher Appellate
authority for Electricity to the extent applicable and best management estimates wherever




needed. Revenue from sale of energy is recognised once the electricity has been delivered
to the beneficiary and is measured through a regular review of usage meters. Beneficiaries
are billed on a periodic and regular basis. As at each reporting date, revenue from sale of
energy includes an accrual for sales delivered to beneficiaries but not yet billed i.e. unbilled
revenue.

(vii) The incentives/disincentives are accounted for based on the norms notified/approved by the
OERC as per principles enunciated in Ind AS 115,

(viii)  Revenue from sale of energy through trading is recognized based on the rates, term &
condition mutually agreed with the beneficiaries and/or revenue earned through trading in
power exchanges.

(ix) Delayed Payment Surcharge for late payment/ overdue trade receivables against sale of
energy is recognized when there is no significant uncertainty as to measurability or
collectability exists.

(x) Rebates allowed to beneficiaries as early payment incentives are deducted from the amount
of revenue.
(xi) Other Income: Rent, Interest / surcharge recoverable on advances to suppliers as well as

warranty claims / liquidated damages is recognized when there is no significant uncertainty
about collectability exists or accepted by other party.

(xii) Dividend Income: Dividend income from investments is recognized when the shareholder’s
rights to receive payment have been established.

(xiii)  Interest Income: Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable. The effective interest rate applicable
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

2.20 Exceptional items:
Exceptional items are items of income and expenses within profit or loss from ordinary activities but
of such size, nature or incidence whose disclosure is felt necessary for better explanation of the
performance of the Company.
2.21 Restatement of material error / omissions
Incomes / expenditure relating to prior period of non-material nature i.e. below Rs.5 lakh is not
considered for restatement.
2.22 Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty
(i) In the application of the Company's accounting policies, which are described in Note-2 the
management of the Company is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

(ii) The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised.
(iii) The following are the critical judgments, apart from those involvin imations (see point “b"




iii.

below), that the management have made in the process of applying the Company's accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial
statements:
Financial assets at amortized cost: The management has reviewed the Company’s financial
assets at amortized cost in the light of its business model and has confirmed the Company’s
positive intention and ability to hold these financial assets to collect contractual cash flows. The
carrying amount of these financial assets is Rs 1739.34 cr (March 31, 2022: Rs. 1049.65 cr Details
of these assets are set out in note — 41
Key sources of estimation uncertainty: The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the end of the reporting period
that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year:
Impairment of investments: The Company reviews the carrying value of investments
carried at amortized cost annually, or more frequently when there is indication for
impairment. If the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, the impairment
loss is accounted for.
Provisions: Provisions (excluding retirement benefits and compensated absences) are not
discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to
settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet
date adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.
Contingent liabilities: Contingent liabilities arising from past events the existence of
which would be confirmed only on occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
uncertain events not wholly within the control of the Company or contingent liabilities
where there is a present obligation but it is not probable that economic benefits would
be required to settle the obligations are disclosed in the financial statements unless the
possibility of any outflow in settlement is remote.
Fair value measurements and valuation processes: For financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorized into Level 1,2 or 3 based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs
to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:
® Level 1inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Company can access at the measurement date;
* Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
® Level 3inputs are inputs that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).
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Odisha Power Generation Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

4  Capital work-in-progress - Tangible

—

(Rupees in Cr)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

A | (i) Tangible Assets

For OPGC-1 (2x210 MW)

For Mini Micro Hydel Projects

Less: Accumulated Impairment losses

For OPGC-2 (2x660 MW)
For OPGC-2 FGD & FGC

1.90 1.67
13.15 13.15
(11.07) (11.07)
27.63 135.75
330.46 161.42

TOTAL

362.08

300.92

Details of expenditure for expansion power plant for OPGC-2

Progress are as follows

(2X660 MW) and FGD & FGC included under Capital Work in

{Rupees in Cr)

! " Deductions / 2 b As at March 31,
Particulars As at 01.04.2022 | Additions Adllictments Capitalized 2023

Plant & equipment (BTG & BOP) 30.72 - 22.95 7.77
AWRS 77.55 - 77.55 -
Expenses During Construction Period 27.06 - 27.06 =
Consultancy Charges 0.21 - 0.21 -
Power Supply Distribution 0.20 0.20 =
Plant & Equipment- others 19.13 19.13
Building 0.62 0.62
Water Supply Drainage 0.11 0.11
OPGC-2 FGD & FGC -
Plant & Equipment 156.94 154.57 311.51
Consultancy Charges 017 0.33 0.50
EDC - 1.17 1.17
IDC 4.30 12.98 17.28

Total 297.16 188.91 - 127.97 358.09

(i) Loans from Power Finance Corporation Ltd (PFC) & REC Ltd
future immovable properties of Unit 3 & 4 (2X660 MW)

(i) Cost of OPGC-2 FGD & FGC includes interest of Rs.12. 97 Cr (Previous Year: Rs 4.30 Cr)
interest rate of 8.80% p.a monthly rest (previous year 8.87

(iii) Property, plant and equipment (including Capital work-

indication of impairment is present.

(C) The capital work-in-progress ageing schedule for the year ended March 31,2023 is as follows:

(REC) and Indian Bank are secured by mortgages on, all present and
. For details, Refer Note 19.

allocated to CWIP at the weighted average
%p.a monthly rest) during the reporting period.

in-progress) were tested for impairment during the year and there is no

(Rupees in Cr)

Projects in progress Amount in CWIP for a period of

Elements As on 31.03.2023 |less than 1 year |1-2 year 2-3 years more than 3
years

Unit 1&2 1.90 0.99 0.47 0.15 0.30

Unit 3&4 27.63 24,01 3.63 - -

Unit 3&4 FGD-FGC 330.46 169.05 161.42 - -

Sub total 360.00 194.04 165.51 0.15 0.30

Projects temporarily suspended

MMHP Impaired (11.07) (11.07)

Harbhangi 6.89 6.89

Badanala 2.78 2.78

Banpur 1.79

Barboria A 1.69

Sub total ol —258% 2.08 - -

Total b/ o 362.08 194.04 165.51




Odisha Power Generation Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

The capital work-in-progress ageing schedule for the year ended March 31, 2022 is as follows:

(Rupees in Cr)

Projects in progress Amount in CWIP for a period of

R Ason 31.03.2022 | less than 1 year 1-2 year 2-3 years mo;z;?:n 3
Unit 1&2 1.28 0.62 0.15 0.21 0.30
Unit 3& 4 140.44 47.48 27.87 2531 39.78
Unit 3&4 FGD-FGC 157.11 157.11 - - -
Sub total 298.83 205.22 28.02 25.52 40.08
Projects temporarily suspended

MMHP (11.07) - - - (11.07)
Harbhangi 6.89 6.89
Badanala 2.78 2.78
Banpur 179 1.79
Barboria 1.69 1.69
Sub total 2.08 - - - 2.08
Total 300.92 205.22 28.02 25.52 42.16
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Odisha Power Generation Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

7

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

Non-current financial assets- Investments in Subsidiary

(Rupees in Cr)

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
No. of shares | Amounts No. of shares Amounts
UNQUOTED INVESTMENTS CARRIED AT COST - - = =
Equity investment in joint ventures (jointly
controlled entities)
Odisha Coal and Power Ltd (Fully paid i
d B LI (Rully palslaquity 21,72,34,500 217.23 21,72,34,500 21723
shares of Rs 10/- each)
Shares pending for allotment -
Total 217.23 217.23

The carrying amount and market value of unquoted investments is as follows:

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Aggregate carrying amount of unquoted investm 217.23 217.23
Total carrying amount 217.23 217.23

# Investments have been valued as per accountin

value within that range.
Details of % of holding and place of business :-

g policy no. 2.6 and cost represents the best estimate of fair

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

% of Holding

Place of Business

51%
Manoharpur and Dip-side ot

Manoharpur

51%
Vianoharpur and Dip-side ot

Manoharpur

Odisha Coal and Power Ltd. (OCPL) was incorporated under the Com
subsidiary company of OPGC on 20th January 2015. Subsequently,
notification No.1578 dated 21st February 2015,
equity shares in OCPL from the reporting company. Shareholder’s Agree

and OCPL is signed on 21st April 2016.

Odisha Hydro Power

panies Act, 2013 as a wholly owned
based on the Government of Odisha
Corporation Ltd (OHPC) acquired 49%
ment among reporting company, OHPC

Pursuant to Deed of Assignment dated 30.12.2022 executed between Government of Odisha , OCPL Ltd, OHPC

Ltd and the Company, shares held by OHPC Ltd aggregating to 49%

been transferred to Government of Odisha on 26.12.2022.

of the paid up share capital of OCPL Ltd. have




Odisha Power Generation Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

8  Non Current financial assets- Loans

(Rupees in Cr)

Erticulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022
a) Loans to employees

- Secured, considered good 0.58 0.85
- Unsecured, considered good 1.60 0.76

- Doubtful - -

Less : Allowance for credit Loss - -
Total 2.18 1.61

(i) Loan to employees includes Rs. 1.74 Cr (Previous Year ;
Loan which carries simple rate of interest varying between 6% to 8% per annum.

Rs.2.33 Cr) on account of Vehicle loan, Computer Loan and Educational

Secured loan represents vehicle loan of Rs 0.90 Cr (Previous Year : Rs. 1.23 Cr), which has been hypothecated in the favor of the

Company.
There is no outstanding loans from directors or other officers of the Company.

8 Non Current financial assets- Others

(Rupees in Cr)

. As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars
2023 2022
a) Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity
(i) Fixed deposits with banks - -
(i) Earmarked Balances with Bank towards
Fixed Deposits with bank pledged as security or margin monev* 11.55 9.30
b) Security Deposits 15.71 15.71
Total 27.26 25.01

(i) *Fixed Deposits with bank pledged as security or margin money includes the followings;

a. The company has provided Rs.0.29 Cr (Previous Year : Rs.0.29 Cr)

in the form of fixed deposit of Axis Bank Ltd as security

against Bank Guarantee value of Rs.31.70 Cr in favor of The Superitendent Engineer, Main Dam Division, Sambalpur, Odisha".

b. The company has provided security of Rs Nil Cr (Previous Year :

Rs 9.00 Cr) in the form of fixed deposits of ICICI Bank Ltd in

favor of " The Executive Engineer, Main Dam Division, Sambalpur, Odisha" against supply of water from Hirakud reservoir,

¢. The company has provided security of Rs. 10.68 Cr (Previous Year :
Operative Bank in favor of "
reservoir,

d.The Company has provided security of Rs 0.02 Cr and 0.55 Cr (Previous year Nil) in the

Rs Nil Cr) in the form of fixed deposit of Orissa State Co-
The Executive Engineer, Main Dam Division, Sambalpur, Odisha" for drawl of water from Hirakud

form of fixed deposit to Union Bank of

India for issuance of Letter of credit in favor of "FA & CAO of SECR Bilaspur,Chatishgarh" for e-payment of railway freight of

SECR and for undercharges recovery of railway freight of SECR respectively.

e.Security Deposits represents deposits received against various ongoing capital contarcts.




Odisha Power Generation Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

9 Other non-current assets
(Rupees in Cr)

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Capital Advances
Capital Advance 71.24 264.97
Advances related to Indirect Taxes 0.40 0.40
Prepaid Expenses = .
Advance to suppliers & Contractors - -
Total 71.64 265.37
Notes:

(i) Capital Advance includes advances given to contractors and service providers for execution of work
related to Unit 3 & 4 balance work and FGD & FGC work of Unit 3&4 (2 X 660 MW).

(iii) Company has capitalised lease hold land amounting to Rs. 0.80 Cr (Previous Year: Rs. 92.53 Cr) during
the reporting year out of the above capital advance.

10 Inventories (At lower of cost or Net Realisable value)

(Rupees in Cr)

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
a. Raw Materials*
Cost 78.98 93.33
Less: Provision - -
b. Components, Chemicals, Stores & Spares*
Cost 137.87 111.78
Less: Provision 0.95 0.95
c. Tools & Tackles
Cost 0.27 0.28
Less: Provision - -
d. Stockin Transit
Cost 0.30 5.86
Less: Provision - :
d. Stock pending inspection
Cost 1.48 1.81
Less: Provision - &
Total Inventories 217.95 212.11

* Physical verification of Inventories have been carried out by third party except Oil which is conducted
internally and valued as per significant accounting policy Note no. 2.12.
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Odisha Power Generation Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

13 Current financial assets-Current Loans

(Rupees in Cr)

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022
a. Loans to employees
- Secured, considered good 0.33 0.38
- Unsecured, considered good 1.34 2.27
- Doubtful - -
Less : Allowance for credit Loss - -
b. Security Deposits 0.05 0.00
TOTAL 1.72 2.66

(i) There is no outstanding loans due from directors or other officers of the Company.

(i) For details of loan to employees, please refer Note-8.

14 Current Financial Asset- Other

(Rupees in Cr)

Particulars

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

2023 2022

Advances to others
Interest accrued on loans and deposits 4.11 2.49
Other Receivables 4.40 5.84
Less: provision for Receivable (0.08) (0.08)
Receivable from related parties 0.28 141
Total 8.71 9.65

Receivable from related parties includes receivables from OCPL as follows;

(Rupees in Cr)

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

Particulars 2023 2022
Land Advance
Contract Payment
Receivable against Statutory Dues (employees) 0.28
Other Admin Expenses
Interest on temporary loan
Total 0.28




Odisha Power Generation Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

15 Current tax assets and liabilities

(Rupees in Cr)

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31,

Particulars 2022
Current tax assets
Tax refund receivables/Advance Tax 638.74 639.39
Advance Tax and TDS for the year 11.67 2.61
Total 650.41 641.99
Current tax liabilities
Income Tax payable 621.81 621.39
Provision for taxation for the year - -
Total 621.81 621.39
Current Tax Assets (Net) 28.60 20.60

Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

16 Other current assets

(Rupees in Cr)

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31,

Particulars 5022

Other assets 12.17 1293

Advances to suppliers 72.22 25.72
Less: Allowance for doubtful - -

Total 84.39 38.64

(i) Other assets include payment made for various insurance coverage and annual

maintenance contracts etc.

(ii)

Advances to suppliers represents operational supplier which are expected to payable
within one year from the balance sheet date. These are unsecured and considered good.
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Odisha Power Generation Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

18 Other Equity

(Rupees in Cr)

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

(i) General Reserve

=

Particulars
2023 2022
Share application money pending allotment 15.00 -
General Reserve 89.60 89.60
Retained earnings 1,547.66 J13.81
Security Premium 58.88 58.88
Total 1,711.14 862.30 |

(Rupees in Cr)

As at March 31,

As at March 31,—‘

Particulars 2023 2022

Balance at the beginning of the year 89.60 89.60
Movements - -

Balance at the end of the year 89.60 89.60

(i) Retained Earnings

(Rupees in Cr)

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

Particulars 2023 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 713.81 819.17
Profit attributable to owners of the Company 839.99 (102.83)
Other comprehensive income arising from remeasurement (6.14) (2.53)
| of defined benefit obligation net of income tax : )
!
Payment of dividends on equity shares = e
“ Related income tax on dividend - ~
@ance at the end of the year 1,547.66 713,81

(iii) Security Premium

(Rupees in Cr)

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

Particulars 2023 2022

Balance at the beginning of the year 58.88 58.88
Movement during the year - -

lEaIance at the end of the year 58.88 58.88




The nature of reserves are follows:
(a) General Reserve :- General Reserve was created through transfer of part of net profit in accordance with

applicable regulations under the provisions of erstwhile Companies Act 1956 which is continuing unchanged.
Such transfer of part of net profit is no more required under the provisions of the Companies Act 2013

(b) Securities Premium : Securities premium is used to record premium received on issue of shares. The
reserve is to be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Indian Companies Act, 2013.There is no
movement in the balance of securities premium during the year.

Proposed Dividend:

is payable to all holders of fully paid equity shares. Total estimated equity dividend to be paid is Rs 103.37
Crores.

Share application money of Rs. 15 Cr towards R & M work of Unit 1&2 have been received vide GOO letter
No 2854 dated 06.03.2023, the same is pending for allotment as on 31.03.2023.




Odisha Power Generation Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

19 Non Current financial liahilities- Borrowings

—

(Rupees in Cr)

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Secured - at amortised cost
For Unit 3&4
From Power Finance Corporation Ltd (PFC) 3,065.19 3,258.68
From REC Ltd 2,016.67 3,157.02
From Indian Bank 864.14 -
For FGD & FGC of Unit 3&4
From Power Finance Corporation Ltd (PFC) 95.88 36.87
From REC Ltd 90.58 65.42

Total 6,132.46 6,518.00

A Term Loan from PFC, REC and Indian Bank :

(i PFC and REC have sanctioned Rs 4290.06 cr and 4181.25 cr each alongwith the sanction of Rs 478.19 cr and
369.25 cr respectively towards cost overrun of the Unit 3 & 4 of IbTPS.

(i) Out of the loan disbursed by REC for Unit 3 & 4, IbTPS, Rs 1000cr is prepaid by the company by availing the same
at a lower rate from the Indian Bank.

(iii) Security :-

(a)

(b)

(c)

The term loan together with all interest (including additional interest), cost, expenses, applicable taxes,
statutory duties and other money is secured with the prescribed coverage ratio (presently 1.1 times) as
applicable by a first charge, by way of mortgage on pari- passu basis through equitable mortgage / simple
mortgage / English mortgage on the project land of Unit 3 & 4 (2x660 MW) of Ib Thermal project of the
Company in favor of PFC, REC and Indian Bank on all immovable assets of Project Unit 3 & 4 (2x660MW)
and first charge on pari passu basis by way of hypothecation in favor of PFC, REC and Indian Bank on all
movable assets of the project except raw materials, consumable spares and book debts.

Save priority (in which case, PFC / REC will have 2nd charge) / pari passu on reciprocal basis (as applicable)
in favor of the Borrower's Bankers on Borrower's stocks of raw materials, fuel stocks, semi-finished and
finished goods, consumable stores and such other movables as may be agreed to by the lender/s for
securing the borrowings for working capital requirements in the ordinary course of business.

Equitable mortgage of land measuring Ac 603.48 dec. (Related to Power Plant Ac.101.02 dec., Ashpond
Ac.357.20 dec. and MGR Ac.145.26 dec.) of Unit 3 & 4 has been created in favor of PFC, REC and Indian
Bank by deposit of original title document with PFC (Trustee for PFC, REC & Indian Bank).

The term loan is secured by a second pari passu charge on the stocks of raw materials, fuel stocks, semi-
finished and finished goods, consumable stores and such other movables as may be agreed for securing
the borrowings for working capital requirements in the ordinary course of business.

If the security provided becomes inadequate to cover the balance of each of the loan outstanding, the
company has undertaken to provide additional security as may be acceptable to lenders.

Repayment of the principal, interest and other charges due on term loan from PFC, REC and Indian Bank is
secured by opening of “Escrow Account” with Union Bank of India and also the Union Bank of India is

appointed as Escrow Agent for this purpose. vy
JI={ b
D )
e Gh)




(iv) Repayment:-

(c)

Term loan from PFC Ltd is repayable in 60 (sixty) unequal structured quarterly instalments commenced
from 15th day of July 2020 and all subsequent instalments become due for payment on 15th day of April,
15th day of July, 15th day of October and 15th day of January every year.

The term loan from REC Ltd is repayable in 60(sixty) equal quarterly instalment commenced from 30th
September 2020 and all subsequent loan repayment due dates shall be the last day of each following
calendar quarter till the entire loan amount with interest and all other dues are repaid to REC Ltd in full.

Term loan from Indian Bank is repayable in 50 (Fifty) equal quarterly instalments commenced from 31st
day of March 2023 and all subsequent instalments become due for payment on 30th day of June, 30th day
of Sept, 31st day of December every year.

(v Interest:-

(a)

(b)

(c)

(e)

(f)

(8)

Loan from PFC & REC: Interest on term loan shall be paid at the prevailing rate applicable to A+ category of
State sector borrower with discount / rebate allowed from time to time on the date of each disbursement
as per the terms and conditions of sanction of loan and policy of PFC and REC.

Loan from PFC Ltd: Applicable interest rate after discount and timely payment rebate is 9.07% p.a. with
quarterly rest and 1 years reset w.e.f. 15.03.2022 on disbursement and outstanding loan balance. Interest
rate reset and revised to 8.81% p.a. with quarterly rest and 1 year reset on disbursement w.e.f. 28.09.2022
and reset on outstanding loan balance w.e.f. 10.10.2022. Interest rate revised to 9.40% p.a. with quarterly
restand 1 year reset on disbursement w.e.f. 22.03.2023.

Loan from REC Ltd: Applicable interest rate is 9.07% p.a. with quarterly rest and 1 year reset on
disbursement and outstanding loan balance w.e.f. 31.01.2022 and interest rate reset and revised to 8.81%
p.a. with quarterly rest and 1 year reset w.e.f. 11.09.2022 on disbursement and outstanding loan balance.

Interest on PFC loan to be serviced on quarterly basis and due date for payment of interest is 10th day of
April, 10th day of July, 10th day of October and 10th day of January every year,

Interest on REC loan to be serviced on quarterly basis and due date for payment of interest is last day of
the last month of the calendar quarter for every year.

The Company has availed the option for payment of upfront fee @ 0.05% on term loan sanctioned by PFC
& REC instead of commitment charges on undrawn amount for each of the quarter,

Loan from Indian Bank: Interest on term loan shall be applied based on 3 month MCLR of Indian Bank as
applicable on the date of 1st disbursement on 30.12.2022 (7.75% p.a. monthly rest) and shall be reset in
every 3 months. Interest on loan from Indian Bank to be serviced on monthly basis and due date for
payment of interest is 1st day of every month.

As




B Term Loan: FGD & FGC

(i) Term loan of Rs 434.40 Crore each were sanctioned by Power Finance Corporation Limited (PFC) and REC
Limited (REC) for construction of Environment Retrofit Project / Installation of Pollution Control Equipments in
Unit 3 & 4 (2X660 MW) Thermal Power Plant with Debt Equity Ratio of 4:1.

(i) Security :-

(@) The Term Loan is secured by first charge on pari pasu basis by way of mortgage in favour of PFC & REC by
extending the existing Charge on the Project land of Unit 3 & 4, Ph-II (2x660MW) of Ib Thermal Project of
the Company. And First charge on pari pasu basis by way of hypothecation in favour of PFC & REC of all the
Borrowers movable assets (save and except book debts), including movable machinery, mandatory spares,
tools & accessaries, fuel stock, spares and materials at project site, present and future,

Save priority (in which case, PFC / REC will have 2nd charge) / pari passu on reciprocal basis (as applicable)
on the following created and/or to be created in favor of the Borrower's Bankers on Borrower's stocks of
raw materials, fuel stocks, semi-finished and finished goods, consumable stores and such other movables
as may be agreed to by the lender/s for securing the borrowings for working capital requirements in the
ordinary course of business.

(b) Enhence / open Escrow account for the entire pendency of the loan with the prescribed coverage ratio
applicable to the satisfaction of the lender/s for due fulfilment of the obligations of the Borrower and for
due repayment of the principal amount of the loan togather with all interest (including additional interest),
interest tax, service charges, penal interest, interest on penal interest, cost, charges losses, applicable
taxes, statutory duties and other money, etc. thereon and/or any other additional amount(s) that become
payable.

(c) Repayment of the principal, interest and other charges due on term loan from PFC and REC has been
secured by opening of “Escrow Account” with Union Bank of India and also the Union Bank of India has
been appointed as Escrow Agent for this purpose.

(iii) Repayment:-
(a) Term loan from PFC is repayable in 180 (One Hundred Eighty) equal monthly instalments due on 10th day

of each month, and 1st repayament date shall be the date falling 6 months after scheduled Date of
Commencement of Commercial Operation.

(b) The term loan from REC is repayable in 60(sixty) equal quarterly instalment and the 1st loan repayment
due date shall be the last of the last month of the calender quarter following the quarter in which the
moratorium period expires and all subsequent loan repayment due dates shall be the last day of each

following calendar quarter till the entire loan amount with interest and all other dues are repaid to REC in
full,

(iv) Interest:-
(a) Interest on term loan shall be paid at the prevailing rate applicable to A+ category of state sector borrower

with discount / rebate allowed from time to time on the date of each disbursement as per the terms and
conditions of sanction of loan and policy of PFC and REC.

(b) Interest rate applicable on the term loan from both PFC and REC is 8.75% p.a. (linked to 3-year AAA
Corporate Bond vyield plus applicable spread and maximum limit to PFC % REC's card rate) with monthly
rest and 1 year reset by both PFC and REC w.e.f. 15.03.2022 and 31.01.2022 respectively. Interest rate
revised to 8.75% p.a. with monthly rest and 1 year reset by both PFC and REC w.e.f. 28.09.2022 and
11.09.2022 respectively by allowing 25 bps discount / rebate on PFC/REC's circular rate. Interest rate
revised by PFC to 9.20% p.a. by allowing 30 bps discount on card rate w.e.f. 22.03.2023 and interest rate
revised by REC to 9.25% p.a. by allowing 25 bps discount on circular rate w.e.f. 01.03.2023.

(C) The Company has not defaulted in payment of interest a
reportig period. P

-




(D) The maturity profile of borrowings (Including interest accrued, Refer Note 24) is as follows:
(Rupees in Cr)

o As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Contractual maturities
In one year or less or on demand 540.53 544,54
Between one & two years 490.16 470.99
Between two & three years 499.49 486.65
Between three & four years 413.16 491.76
Between four & five years 554.66 405.10
More than five years 4,213.63 4,666.50
Total contractual cash flows 6,711.63 7,065.53
Less: Capitalisation of transaction costs 38.64 2.99
Total Borrowings 6,672.99 7,062.54




Odisha Power Generation Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

20 Non Current financial liabilities- Others

(Rupees in Cr)

] As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2023 2022
a. Capital Creditors - -
b.  Security Deposits 0.36 1.06
€. EMD and Retention Money - -
d. Payable to Government * 1.86 1.86
Total 2.22 2.9]

* Payable to Government: Grant of Rs. 1.86 Cr were received fr

om Ministry of Non-

conventional Energy, Govt. of India for construction of Mini Micro Hydel Projects. The Company
has impaired four Hydel projects and accordingly grant was reclassified as payable to
government. Any unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attaching to government

assistance has not been reviewed and recognized.
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Odisha Power Generation Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

22 Non Current liabilities-Deferred tax liabilities (net)

(Rupees in Cr)

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2023 2022

Deferred Tax Liabilities 839.63 678.92
Less : Deferred Tax Asset (688.81) (812.10)
Net Deferred Tax (Asset)/ Liability 150.81 (133.18)

Income Tax
(i} The reconciliation of estimated income taxes to income tax expenses is as follows:

(Rupees in Cr)

Particulars As at March As at March 31,

31, 2023 2022

Income before income taxes 1,126.46 (134.20)

Tax Calculated based on normal tax rate 283,51 (33.78)
Items not deductible for tax/not liable to tax -

Donation & CSR Expenses 0.30 0.49

Adjustment for ICDS 0.17 0.17
Impairment loss - -

Others 2.48 1.74

Income tax expense reported 286.47 (31.37)

(ii) Significant component of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended Mrach 31,2023 is as follows:

(Rupees in Cr)

i Deferred tax Deferred tax Closing
Opening .
. expense/(income) expense/|balance as at
Particulars balance as at ; ; .
April 1. 2022 recognized in (income) March 31,
IR profit and loss| recognized in OCI) 2023
Deferred tax assets
Provisions 15,27 2133 2.06 19.66
Business Loss 796.83 (127.68) - 669.16
Others - - -
Total 812.10 (125.35) 2.06 688.81
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment and
Intangible assets 678.92 160.71 - 839.63
Total 678.92 160.71 - 839.63
Net Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities (133.18) 286.06 (2.06) 150.81

The Company has availed the option of concessional rate

prescribed under section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act and

accordingly recognized Deferred Tax Assets & Liabilities considering concessional Income Tax rate of 25.17% including

surcharge and cess.

TEHER
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Odisha Power Generation Corporation Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
24 Current Financial Liabilities- Borrowings

Current maturities of non-current borrowings

= (Rupees in Cr)
Particulars As at March 31, 2023| As at March 31, 2022
Loans repayable on demand
From Banks
Secured
a. Cash credit 311.48 219.15
From Financial Institutions
Secured -
b.  Short Term Loan - PFC * - 500.00
€. Medium Term Loan from REC Ltd ** 120.00 -
¢. Medium Term Loan from REC Ltd 270.83 228.50

From Financial Institutions

a. From Power Finance Corporation Ltd (PFC) 214.51 213.15

b.  From REC Ltd 179.38 257.84

c.  FromIndian Bank 80.00 -
d. Interest accrued on borrowings 66.63 73.55

Total 1,242.84 1,492.19

A Cash Credit (CC):

(i) Cash Credit (CC) Facility, with sanctioned limit of Rs. 500.00 Crore including STL of Rs.100.00 Crore and Bank Guarantee

Rs.32.00 Crore, availed from Union Bank of India to meet the Working Capital requirement of the Company.
Drawl / utilisation of CC facility is based on monthly drawing power determined and margin of 25% to be maintained on stock
and book debts (other than book debts more than 180 days) to arive the drawing power.

(i) Security: Cash Credit Facility is secured by First exclusive Hypothecation Charge on Raw materials, Consumable Spares and
Book Debts of Unit 1&2 and Unit 3&4 and Second exclusive Charge on all the immovable and movable assets created out of
the Term Loan from PFC, REC & Indian bank and also immovable properties charged to PFC, REC & Indian bank.

(iii) Interest: : Rate of interest applicable on CC facility is linked to 1 year MCLR rate and reset on yearly basis. Interest Rate
applicable during the reporting period w.r.t. CC facility is 7.45% p.a. (April to August 22), 7.95% p.a. (Sept to Dec 22) and 7.70%
p-a. (Jan to Mar 23) and STL is 7.70% p.a. (April to August 22) and 7.95% p.a. (Sept 22 to Mar 23),

(iv) The Company has not made any default in repayment of loans or interest thereon during the reporting Year .

(v) Balance outstanding as on reporting date is duly confirmed by Union Bank of India.

Borrowings (CC) secured against current asset
Monthly statements are in agreement with books of account related to current assets has been duly filed with the bank
within stipulated time.

B Short Term Loan ( STL): PFC *

(i) STL with sanction limit of Rs.250.00 Crore availed from PFC with Fixed rate of interest of 6 % p.a. to meet the working capital
requirement of the Company. The said loan is repayble on 25th March 2023,

(i) STL from PFC s secured through Escrow cover for entire amount,

(iii) Balance outstanding as on reporting date is duly confirmed by PFC.

(iv) The Company has not made any default in repayment of loans or interest thereon during the reporting Year.

C Medium Term Loan (MTL)(Short term in nature): ** 27, ACCOUNTHAY
(i)  MTL with sanction limit of Rs.250.00 Crore availed from REC to meet the working capital requirement of the Company. 7o
(ii)  Security: MTL is secured by Escrow Cover through tripartite Escrow agreement upto 100 % of the loan amount. N Ty
(i} Interest: Applicable interest rate for MTL sanctioned by REC is 6% p.a. monthly rest (without reset option). ™y
(iv) Repayment: The MTL shall be repaid in five equal monthly instalments after moratorium period of 7 months from 1st

disbursement. Disbursement of said loan made on 29.06.2022.

(v]  The Company has not made any default in repayment of loans or interest thereon during the reporting Year.

(vi) Balance outstanding as on reporting date is duly confirmed by REC Ltd.

€ Medium Term Loan (MTL):

(i)

MTL with sanction limit of Rs.500.00 Crore availed from REC to meet the working capital requirement of the C



(if)
(i)
(iv)

(v)

Security: MTL is secured by exclusive first charge by way of hypothecation of whole of the existing movable assets i.e. plant &
machinery of Unit 1 & 2, 210 MW each at IB Thermal Power Station in Jharsuguda District of Odisha based on fair market
value to cover 120% of the sanction limit,

Interest: Applicable interest rate for MTL sanctioned by REC is 8.75% p.a. monthly rest.

Repayment: The MTL shall be repaid in 24 monthly equal instalments comencing after moratorium period of 12 month from
1st disbursement. The repayment of MTL commenced from May 2022.

The Company has not made any default in repayment of loans or interest thereon during the reporting Year.

(vi) Balance outstanding as on reporting date is duly confirmed by REC Ltd.
D Current maturities of non-current borrowings

Details in respect of rate of interest and terms of repayment of current maturities of secured non-current borrowings

indicated above are disclosed in Note 19
25 Current liabilities-Other Financial Liabilities

(Rupees in Cr)

. As at March 31, 2023 | As at March 31,2022
Particulars

a. Interestaccrued on Medium term Loan 0.06 0.26
- Interest accrued on Short Term Loan - 0.12

c. Others: &
i. Deposits & Retention Money* 48.10 48.98
ii. Liabilities for Expenses 4.24 531
iii. Payable to employees 17.73 13.21
iv. Capital Creditors 92.75 277.87
Total 162.88 345.77

C(i): Deposits & Retention Money includes advance received from customer against sale of scrap amounting to Rs 0.41 Cr (previous

year Rs 0.97 Cr)

C(ii): Capital creditors represents, supply & services related to Unit 3 & 4 balance work and FGD & FGC work of Unit 3 & 4 .

26 Current Liabilities-Other Current Liabilities

(Rupees in Cr)

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Particulars
a. Advances from Customers & others 76.11 76.11
b. Statutory Dues Payables 5.61 5.19
Total 81.72 81.30

a. Advance from customer includes Adhoc payment for fuel oil
GRIDCO received amounting to Rs. 76.03 Cr

b. Statutory dues include amount payable in respect of GST, TDS,TCS etc which will be paid in next reporting period.

27 Current Liabilities-Provisions

cost against pending FPA bill for the FY 2016-17 to 2020-21 raised to

(Rupees in Cr)

: As at March 31, 2023| As at March 31, 2022
Particulars

Employee Benefits #
- Gratuity 10.54 4.58
- Leave benefits 8.81 8.18
- One Time Pension benefits 2.33 2.28
- Terminal TA benefits 0.89 0.95
- Pay revision - 7.16
Total 22.58 23.15

# Details in terms of Note 21
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28 Revenue from Operations

(Rupees in Cr)

Year ended March

Year ended March

Particulars
31,2023 31, 2022
Energy Sales(including Electricity Duty) 3,658.07 2,734.39
Sale of energy in Power Exchange through GRIDCO under MOU 555.73 117.75
|Total 4,213.80 2,852.13

(i) The Company primarily generates revenue from contracts with GRIDCO for supply of energy generated from
power plants including from sale of energy in Power Exchange through GRIDCO

(i) Energy Sales from Unit 1 &2 of Ib TPS has been accounted for in accordance with the tariff approved hy

Hon’ble Odisha Electricity Regulatory Commission (OERC).

(iii) Energy Sales from Unit 3 & 4 of Ib TPS up to 75% of the installed capacity under long term PPA with GRIDCO
has been accounted for as per Generation tariff order approved by Hon’ble OERC on dated 07.01.2023.The order
is applicable from COD date Unit 3 & 4 to FY 2023-24.The differential arrear bills of Rs 445.03 Cr (Rs.185.81 Cr
for the FY 20, Rs.50.65 Cr for the FY 21 ,Rs. 229.77 for FY22 and Rs.21.20 Cr for FY 23) have been raised and
accepted by GRIDCO and accordingly accounted for in the reporting year based on the principles of certainty

backed by mentioned binding OERC tariff order.

(iv) Sale of energy in Power Exchange through GRIDCO under MOU out of balance 25%

recognised at the market clearing price (MCP).

of Unit 3 &4 of Ib TPS, is

(v) Sales of energy are net of rebate to beneficiary amounting to Rs. 50.53 Cr (Previous Year Res. 48.29 Cr).
(vi) Energy Sales includes electricity duty amounting to Rs. 38.15 Cr (Previous Year Rs. 36.76 Cr).

(vii) Sales does not include internal consumption of 343.25 MU including transformer loss of 20.239 MU
(Previous Year : 346,69 MU including transformer loss of 21.52 MU), the cost of which is determined as Rs.

94.57 Cr (Previous Year : Rs. 86.00 Cr) approximately for Unit 1 & 2 and 502.15 MU (
cost of which is determined as Rs. 150.06 Cr (Previous Year :Rs. 161.34 Cr

Previous Year : 463.58 MU ),
) for Unit 3 & 4 respectively.

(viii) For MMHP, Hon'ble OERC vide case no 35/2018 dated 05.01.2019 have ordered tariff of Rs 3.91/kwh from
2007-08 onwards both for pre and post PPA period for Kendupatna and Biribati on net export basis.

On the basis of such approved order and direction, OPGC has raised year wise invoices along with jointly
certified meter reading by representatives of OPGC and TPCODL which are accepted by GRIDCO. During the
reporting period OPGC has raised Rs 0.09 Cr energy bill for the FY 2021-22 and 0.06 Cr for the FY 2022-23 to

GRIDCO.

(ix) Energy exported from MMHP in the reporting Period 1,61,644 Kwh (Previous Year 2,45,824 Kwh ) billed to

GRIDCO on net export basis.

(x) Delay Payment surcharge (DPS) amounting to Rs 43.79 Cr and Rs. 1.23 Cr (
Rs.1.00 Cr ) for Unit 1&2 and Unit3 & 4 respectively has been billed to GRIDCO
company in the books of account which is recognised only when there is no sig

accountability or collectability exists.

previous year Rs. 34.22 Cr and
but not recognised by the
nificant uncertainty as to

(xi) The company has Power Purchase Agreements (PPA) with GRIDCO which are identifiable contract for supply
of power. The company recognised revenue in the books of accounts as per Ind AS 115. There will be no impact
of standalone selling price as the reporting entity books its revenue on the basis of the tariff order of OERC.

(xii) Sale of energy related to Unit 1 & 2 has been secured through LC arrangment made by Union Bank of India.

(xiii) Particulars of Generation, Auxiliary Consumption and Sale of power

A

—

b
g8

A
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(xiv)

Unit1 &2

(Rupees in Cr)

Year ended March

Year ended Mam

Nature, timing of satisfaction of performance obligations and significant payment terms

Particulars
31,2023 31, 2022
Generation (MU) 2,782.51 2,955.80
Sale (MU) 2,439.27 2,609.11
Internal consumption (MuU) 343.25 346.69
Sale (Net) (Rs in Cr) 727.75 714.87
Internal consumption (Rs in Cr) 94.57 86.00
Unit3 & 4
" Year ended March Year ended March
Particulars
31,2023 31, 2022
Generation (MU) 8,930.91 7,236.55
Sale (MU) 8,428.77 6,772.97
Internal consumption (MU) 502.15 463.58
Sale (Net) (Rs inCr) 3,486.06 2,137.26
Llnternal consumption (Rs in Cr) 150.06 161.34
Product/
Service

Energy sales

The Company recognises revenue from contracts for energy sales over time as GRIDCO
simultaneously receive and consume the benefits provided by the Company.The tariff for
computing revenue from energy sales is determined in terms of OERC Regulations as
notified from time to time. The amount of revenue recognised for energy sales is adjusted
for variable consideration, wherever applicable, which are estimated based on the historical
data available with the Company. The amounts are billed on a monthly basis and are
payable within contractually agreed credit period.
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29 Other Income

(Rupees in Cr)

; Year ended March Year ended
| Particulars
31,2023 March 31, 2022
a [Interest Income
Interest income from Bank Deposits at amortised Cost 12.69 4,94
Interest income from loans to related parties at amortised cost - -
Others 0.31 0.19
13.00 512
a |Dividend Income
Dividend Received from Investment- OCPL 73.32
73.32 -
b |Other non-operating income
(net of expenses directly attributable to such income)
Sale of Scrap / residual materials 4,68 0.88
Sale of Ash bricks - 0.00
Receipt for Rent, Water, Electricity Charges 2.21 1.88
Miscellaneous Incomes 4.46 7.50
Exchange Gain/ (loss) (0.01) (0.01)
Gain/ (Loss) on Physical Inventory-spares - (0.05)
Abnormal Gain/(loss) on Physical Inventory-oil - -
Gain/(loss) on Physical Inventory-ACB Coal 0.01 (0.54)
Liability/Provision written back 5.89 0.52
17.24 10.18
¢ |Other gains and losses
Gain /(loss) on disposal of PPE - -
Total (a+b+c) 103.55 15.30
d [Less:
Amount included in the cost of qualifying assets 0.17 0.65
0.17 0.65
Total 103.38 14.65

(i) Miscellaneous income includes

(a) Township recoveries of Rs 1.03 Cr (Previous Year Rs. 0.85 Cr).
(b ) LD ,Penalty recoveries » SD & EMD forefieted for Rs. 0.98 Cr (Previous Year Rs. 6.59 Cr) from contractors and
(c) Rs. 1.01 Cr (Previous Year Rs. 0.91 Cr) towards Service charges of Water pumping facility to MCL,

(i) Gain/(loss) on Physical Inventory-ACB Coal represents gain of Rs. 0.73 Cr (previous year coal shortage of 2747.071
ton amounting to Rs. 0.54 Cr ) found at the closure of contract of ACB () Ltd. Hmgiri.

(iii) Liability / excess provision written back includes excess arrear salary provision amounting to Rs. 4.72 Cr and Variable
pay provision for Rs. 1.16 Cr has been written back during the reporting year.




Rs Cr

Year ended March Year ended

(iv) ’;ess Provision written back related to 31,2023| March 31, 2022
Employee benefits and expense 5.88 0.51
Generation and other expenses - -
Administrative expenses 0.00 0.01

(v) Sale of ash bricks after adjusting cost of sales amounting to Nil (Previous Year: Rs Nil), primarily on supplying ash
bricks to the agencies engaged inside the plant for developing infrastructural facilities such as construction of
auxiliary buildings, various sheds, boundary walls, building partition walls and road paving etc. Supply of fly ash bricks
for such activities are made on cost-to-cost basis without any margin thereon and the Company is not selling fly ash/
ash bricks to outside parties for commercial purpose.

(Vi) Company have received Rs 22.32 Cr as final dividend for FY 2021-22 based on the decession of the 7th Annual
General Meeting of the OCPL held on 22-11-2022.

(Vii) Based on the OCPL board meeting held on 30.12.2022, the company has received Rs 51 Cr as interim divided for FY
2022-23 and accounted for.
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30 Cost of raw material consumed

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(Rupees in Cr)

’» Pastieuias Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023| March 31, 2022

Imported = 2
Indigenous 1,771.56 1,564.42
Total 1,771.56 1,564.42
Particulars of raw materials consumed (Rupees in Cr)
[ ; Year ended Year ended

Particulars
March 31,2023| March 31, 2022
Coal 1,757.27 1,549.68
HFO / LDO 14.29 14.74
1,771.56 1,564.42
Less :

Amount included in the cost of qualifying assets & -

Total 1,771.56 1,564.42

The company primarily receives coal from MCL & OCPL based on the FSA Signed between the parties & oil from IOCL based on

agreed terms & conditions.

For Unit 1 & 2, Coal Consumption of 24,71,637 MT amounting to Rs 429.01 cr (Previous Year : 25,96,035 MT amounting to Rs
431.85 Cr ) including Coal Shortage of 2061.64 MT amounting to Rs 0.36 cr (Previous Year 611.1 MT amounting to R 0.10 Cr )
found during physical verification has been charged to cost of raw material consumption as per the policy Note No-2.12.

For Unit 3 & 4, Bridge Linkage Coal Consumption of 5980 MT amounting to Rs. 2.66 Cr (Previous Year : 37,84,928 MT amounting

to Rs. 144 Cr) has been charged to cost of raw material consumption as per the policy Note No-2.12.

For Unit 3 & 4, Flexi Coal Consumption of Nil amounting to Rs Nil (Previous Year 735976 MT amounting to Rs.118.97 Cr Jhas been

charged to cost of raw material consumed as per the policy Note No-2.12.

For Unit 3 & 4, OCPL Coal through Indian Railway Consumption of 1883198 MT amounting to Rs 409.21 Cr (Previous Year Nil) has

been charged to cost of raw material consumed.

For Unit 3 & 4, OCPL Coal through ACB siding Consumption of 1681.40 MT amounting to Rs 0.48 Cr (Previous Year 2305750 MT

amounting to Rs 524.25 Cr) has been charged to cost of raw material consumed.

For Unit 1 & 2, LDO Consumption of 1070 KL amounting to Rs 8.82 cr (Previous Year : 1187 KL amounting to Rs 6.60 Cr) has been

charged to cost of raw material consumption.

For Unit 3 & 4, HFO & LDO Consumption of 1222 KL amounting to Rs. 5.48 Cr (Previous Year : 2160 KL amounting to Rs 8.13 Cr) has

been charged to cost of raw material consumption,

<

L
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(x) Quantitative statement of Coal & il

[ Year ended March 31,2023 Year ended March 31, 2022

Particulars Unit Quantity Rs Cr Quantity Rs Cr

MCL Coal Unit1 & 2 MT 24,71,637 429.01 25,96,035 431.85
Bridge Linkage Coal Unit3 & 4 MT 5,980 2.66 7,84,928 143.64
Flexi Coal Unit 3 & 4 MT 7,35,976 120.23
OCPLCoal U#3 & 4 MT 43,85,028 915.91 15,92,781 329.70
OCPL Coal U#3 & 4 IR / ACB MT 18,84,879 409.70 23,05,750 524.25
LDO Unit1 & 2 KL 1,070 8.82 1,187 6.61
HFO & LLO Unit 3 & 4 KL 1,222 5.48 2,160 8.13

(xi)

Product/ Service Nature, timing of satisfaction of performance obligations and significant payment terms
Fuel cost is booked on the basis of invoices raised by the Fuel Vendors excepting the
invoices disputed otherwise. In case of non receipt of invoices before closure of books of

-~ accounts, the cmpany esimates based on historical data, the amount in all lilkelyhood
would be raised by the fuel vendors towards quantity,quality or otherwise and provides the
same in the books.Differenteial value of actual and provisional value taken are booked in
the subsequent period in which invoices received.

(xii) For Unit 1&2, provisional Debit note / Credit Notes from MCL amounting to Rs.1.07 Cr for Feb’23 (8 days provisional) and Rs.2.82

Cr for Mar’23 (provisional) have been estimated and performance Incentive of Rs 1.39 Cr has been taken on estimate basis during
the reporting year.
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31 Employee Benefit Expenses

(Runees in Cr)
Bartiktdars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Salaries and Wages 101.05 95.42
Contribution to provident and other funds 14.09 1113
Staff Welfare expenses 8.00 8.81
Total (A) 123.13 115.36
Less :
Allocated to fuel cost 8.32 8.28
Amount included in the cost of qualifying assets 0.92 7.53
Total (B) 9.24 15.81
Net (A-B) 113.89 99.55

Salary accrued amounting to Rs 2.16 Cr (Previous Year: Rs 2.17 Cr ) as expenses with respect to key
managerial personnel. The details of such expenses are as below:

Partisulars Year ended Year ended

March 31,2023| March 31, 2022

(a) Short term employee benefits 2.15 2.16

(b) Post employment benefits 0.01 0.01
(c) Other employee benefits - -

(ii) It includes an amount of Rs 12.27 Cr (Previous Year Rs 9.74 Cr) towards provision for Variable Pay of the

employees under approved performance management system of the company.

(iii) Disclosure as per Ind AS-19 in respect of provision made towards various employee benefits are given as

follows.

A. Provident Fund: Company pays fixed contribution to provident fund at predetermined rates to a
separate trust, which invests the funds in permitted securities. The contribution to the fund for the year is
recognised as expense and is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. The obligation of the Company is
to make such fixed contribution and to ensure a minimum rate of return to the members as specified by
Govt. of India.

B. Gratuity: The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has rendered
continuous service of five years is entitled to gratuity at 15 days salary (15/26 X last drawn basic salary &
dearness allowance as applicable) for each completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months
subject to a maximum of 20 months salary on superannuation, resignation, termination, disablement or on
death. The actuarial valuation has been made by taking into account maximum gratuity @ 15 days salary
for each completed year of service subject to maximum 20 months salary as specified in OPGC Ltd Rule for
Group Gratuity Scheme. The scheme is funded and managed by.L'IC. The Company recognised liability on
the basis of actuarial valuation. i) ** '




C. Leave: The Company provides for earned leave benefit (including compensated absences) and half-pay
leave to the cadre employees of the Company which accrue annually at 30 days and 10 days respectively.
Similarly the company also provides benefit to Market Based Salary structure employees (MBS) which
accrued annually at 24 days. Earned leave and half pay leave is not cashable during service. However total
earned leave that can be encased on superannuation / separation shall be restricted to 300 days incase of
cadre employees and 120 days in case of MBS employees. Commutation of half-pay leave shall be
permissible for cadre employees only. These schemes are unfunded and the liability for the same is
recognised on the basis of actuarial valuation.

D. Pension: The Company in its 204th Board meeting held on 28.05.2018 has approved six months salary as
one time financial benefits towards pension to the OPGC cadre employees at the time of retirement with
effect from 23.03.2017. The scheme is unfunded and the liability for pension benefits payable is recognised
based on an actuarial valuation.

E. Retirement TA: In accordance with provisions of company Travel Policy, two months last drawn salary is
payable to employees on retirement by superannuation to meet travelling expenses. The scheme is
unfunded and the liability for pension benefits payable is recognised based on an actuarial valuation.

(iv) The above mentioned schemes (C, D and E) are unfunded and are recognised on the basis of actuarial

(v) The Gratuity scheme is funded and managed by LIC and the liability is recognised on the basis of actuarial
valuation.

(vi) The Company has made contribution to EPF trust amounting to Rs. 5.27 Cr on account of cumulative loss by
EPF Trust as on 31.03.2023.
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32 Finance Costs

(Rupees in Cr)

—

Particulars

Year ended
March 31,2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

(a)

Interest Expense

Interest on Term Loan 605.10 728.51
Interest on Medium Term Loan 35.37 39.97
Interest on Short Term Loan 22.20 -
Interest on short term loans from scheduled bank 3.12 16.59
Interest on Decommissioning and Construction liability 0.69 0.67
(b) Other Borrowing Cost -
Upfront fee Charges 2.01 0.22
Total Finance Cost 668.50 785.96
Less : amount included in the cost of qualifying assets 12.98 52.39
Total 655.52 733.56

Interest on term loan from PFC » REC Ltd & Indian Bank calculated based on the outstanding loan

drawn for Unit 3 & 4. For details refer Note 19.

Interest paid towards MTL loan to REC Ltd amounting to Rs 35.37 Cr (Previous Year Rs 39.70 cr) has

been accounted for as Finance cost, for details refer Note 24.

Interest paid towards STL to PEC amounting to Rs 13.33 Cr (Previous Year Rs 0.26 Cr

) and to REC

amounting to Rs.8.87 Cr (previous year : Nil) has been accounted for as Finance cost, for details refer

Note 24.

Interest on Cash Credit laon (CQ)
12.93 er)
has been accounted for as Finance cost, for details refer Note 24,

taken from Union Bank amounting to Rs 3.12 cr
and Interest on STL from Union Bank of India amounting to Rs Nil (

(Previous Year

Previous Year Rs. 3.65 cr)

Interest on Decommissioning and Construction liability represents future decommissioning liability

of Ash Pond of Unit 1,2,38&4.

Upfront fee represents fees paid to PFC & REC Ltd, Indian Bank & SBI Caps at the time of availment
term loans which is charged on yearly basis as other borrowing cost.

Upfront fee charges includes, upfront fee / processing fee paid at the time of availment term loan to
PFC, REC & Indian Bank and cost of refinancing of existing term loan (i.e. pre-payment charges paid to

REC and syndication fees paid to SBI Capital
and stated under other borrowing cost.

Markets Ltd), which is amortised over the loan period
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33 Depreciation & amortisation expenses

(Rupees in Cr)

’ Year ended March| Year ended March
Particulars

31,2023 31, 2022

Depreciation & amortisations 379.69 350.94
Less :

Allocated to fuel cost 78.37 48.56

Amount included in the cost of qualifying assets - 0.41

Total 301.32 301.97

(i)

Depreciation & amortisations include Rs 5.30 Cr
right to use of Leasehold land.

(i) Depreciation & amortizations include Rs.23.53 Cr
(Previous Year :Rs. 281.28 Cr)

and loss. For details of assets ¢

for Unit 1 & 2 and Unit3 & 4 respectively charged to s

(iii)

Useful life taken for calculating depreciation is as
The Companies Act 2013.

per Accounting policy Note no 2.7

34 Impairment losses

(Previous Year Rs 4.46 Cr) amortization towards use of

(Previous Year: Rs.20.67 Cr) and Rs. 356.16 Cr

tatement of profit

apitalized during the reporting period , refer Note 3, 4 & 5.

and Schedule Il of

(Rupees in Cr)

Year ended March
31,2023

Particulars

Year ended March
31, 2022

Impairment of CWIP (Mini Micro Hydel Projects). Refer Note- 4

Total
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35 Other Expenses

(Rupees in Cr)

Partieuliars Year ended March Year ended
31,2023| March 31, 2022
Generation Expenses:
Consumption of Stores, spares & chemicals 74.62 66.60
Power, Electricity Duty and Water 89.98 85.14
Contract Job outsourcing expenses 71.89 62.34
Insurance 33.71 25.99
Other generation expenses 29.85 33.61
Repairs to buildings 7.39 4.37
Repairs to Machinery 1,12 1.29
308.56 279.33
Administrative Expenses:
Rent 2.16 2.43
Recruitment & training expenses 0.69 0.44
Legal fees & expenses 9.59 6.64
IT maintenance expense 4.28 4,25
R/M to other facilities 1.16 1.12
Repair & Running expenses of Motor Cars & other vehicle 3.58 2.83
Professional Fees and expenses 1.15 0.32
MGR lease rental 1.61 -
General expenses 4.88 4.79
Rate, Taxes & Cess 1.96 2.14
Travelling expenses 0.85 1.78
Watch and Ward expenses 8.39 8.76
Township development expenses 16.44 11.88
56.73 47.38
Other Expenses:
Payment to Auditors 0.25 0.19
Peripheral development expenses - 0.27
Donation - 1.00
Expenses for sale of power in exchange through GRIDCO 35.22 7.13
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 0.18 0.07
35.65 8.65
Corporate Social Responsibility 1.21 0.96
Less: Allocated to Fuel Cost 53.32 34.64
Amount included in the cost of qualifying assets 0.41 0.19
53.73 34,82
Total
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(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Payment to Auditors:

Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023| March 31, 2022
a. Statutory Audit
Statutory Audit Fees 0.11 0.12
Statutory Audit expenses 0.01 0.01
Limited Review Fees 0.11 -
b. Tax Audit fees 0.02 0.02
c. Certification fee 0.01 0.00
TOTAL 0.25 0.16

For Unit 1 & 2, other expenses includes generation ex
Administration expenses amounting to Rs. 32.97 Cr (

Rs.0.63 Cr (Previous Year Rs. 1.87 Cr).

penses amounting to Rs. 83.67 Cr (Previous Year Rs. 74.71 Cr),
Previous Year Rs. 29.53 Cr) and Other expenses amounting to

For Unit 3 & 4, other expenses includes generation expenses amounting to Rs.171.57 Cr (Previous Year Rs. 204.73
Cr), Administration expenses amounting to Rs. 23.52 Cr (Previous Year Rs. 17.52 Cr ) and Other exp

to Rs.35.22 Cr (Previous Year Rs. 6.93 Cr).

enses amounting

Expenses for sale of power in exchange through GRIDCO includes Trading margin 5.72 Cr, STOA Charges Rs 27.84 Cr
and Trading other related expenses Rs 1.66 Cr respectively.

In terms of section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, the company is not required to make any expenditure on
Corporate Social Responsibility during the reporting year .

The Company's CSR spent during the Period ended March 31, 2023 is as under; (Rupees in Cr)

Particulars In Cash Yet to be paid in Total
Cash
(i) Construction / acquisition of any asset - - -
(ii) On purpose other than (i) above 1.00 0.21 1.21
Total 1.00 0.21 1.21

(vi)

Interms of the notification of MOEF dated 31/12/2021 and ammendment dated 31/12/2022, the company is in
compliances of utilising the ash including legacy ash within time frame defined in the said notofications.
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Cost of Qualifying Assets( Unit 3 & 4) (Rupees in Cr)
Year ended March,31,2023 Year ended March 31, 2022
A.  EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
Salaries & Wages 0.86 6.98
Contribution to
Provident fund 0.04 0.21
Gratuity fund 0.28
Staff Welfare Expenses 0.03 0.92 0.06 753
B FINANCE COST
Interest Expenses 12.98 52.39
Other borrowing Cost 12,98 - 52.39
0 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES
Depreciation - 0.41 0.41
D RAW MATERIAL CONSUMPTION
E Generation Expenses
Consumption of Stores & spares 0.10
Water & Electricity charges
- 0.10
F Project Insurance - (0.22) (0.22)
G ADMINSTRATIVE AND OTHER EXPENSES
Administrative Expenses =
Rent 0.01
Professional Fees and expenses
General expenses 0.39 0.17
Travelling expenses 0.02 0.02
Township development expenses 0.04
Peripheral development expenses 0.06
Donation - 0.41 0.31
H  CSR expenditure in compliance to Environmental Clearance . 1.97 1.97
Total - 14,31 62.49
OTHER INCOME
Interest Income -
Other non-operating income (net of expenses directly
attributable to such income) 0.17 0.65
Other gains and losses - 2
0.17 0.65




212 000l ‘(12140)
P31 03 uoIssiwsuel| Jamod eysipO ‘pI1 0JAIYO 03 pajwi| jou g spnpul suondesuesy juedyiudis sey Auedwo) syl Yorym yum sannus yans 'siseq
Y18ua) wie 1e ssauisng Jo asiNod Adeuipio ay) ul 1no paled ale suondesuesy 4ans Souls UaAIS ua3q aAey JouU AeW suodESURI] YINS 10 sjiejap asim-Aped
‘210J343YL ¥Z SV PU] Yam aduepiodde uj SjUSW=1e]S |BIDUBULY BY] Ul S3UNSO|ISIP Palill| Ipew Sey pue sanijua pa3ie|aJ Juawuianos 1oy ajgeieae uoidwaxa
9y} paljdde sey Auedwo) ay) 'saJeys jo Ayuofew Buipjoy Aq Juswuianon eysipo Ag pa||043u0d (NSdS) Sunjenapun 101935 Jl|gnd @3e1s e st Auedwo) ay)
JJUBWULIBA0D SWES 3Y] JO |0J3UCD Y} J3pun Saug 2
pung juapiaold paiiwil 3940
RE. pund 1sni] Auiniesg dnoug sashojdwy Hnd4o
: :sue|d Jyauaq JuawAho|dwa 3soq 'p

Aseyaunas Auedwon ooyes Jewny| jueseg LS

49210 |eldueUl J31YD epued Jewny Uiy ug

dIAI 12410

CC0T°CT 0T yom 10332u1a elysiiA elndues ug

¢C0T'90°0¢ 1111202°80°0C "yom 4030al1g SVI ‘eJysIIAl 1yleaes eylied LS
CC0T'60'ST yo'm 403133113 saulwonN SVl “eAen Jnisiypny us

TZOZ'LO'TO }om J032241g Bu3f |[ewe)y eAepnuy 1S

€20C'¥0'9T 111 020T90°TO J'a'm uewdieyy Sv1 ‘eleyq ueyig efunyiy 1S
€C0T'90°TO 1N €20T PO LT yom ueuuieyy Syl ‘ySuis Jewny Aefues g
€20T°90°20 yorm uewureys SV1 ‘ |eyq ‘g efunyin us

151019341 J3UIWON JUIWUIIA0D

1202 F0'6T 42'm (uonesadp)iopaag IN0Y Jewny| seuepl IS
T20Z°COCT ya'm 10310311q SuiSeuey elledeyon Jewny jueselqd us
$10123.1Q dWi] 3|0y

{(dINIM) |ouuosiad |elsaSeuep Aay =)
(1dD0) panwiy 1amogd pue |eo) eysipo

‘Auedw o) ainjuap julof 'q
eysipQ JO JOUJIIA0L)
€20T°T1'9C 01020T°TT0T 4'2°M (DdHO) paywi uonesodio) 1amod 0IpAH eysipQ

siapjoyaseys Alinbg ‘e

suonesuely Aued pajejay g¢

Sjuawsajels |elpueuly ay3 jo Jed Sulwao) sajoN
payiwi] uoesodio) uoieIaUID J1aMOd eYSIpO



95y
¥S'0T

60°T
[k

9EVT
ETTT

LT°E
ST'¢

'l
870

9S'veET
95 PET

CCEL

SEvYL
€9°SPT'T

LE0T

C-120C A4
€2-220T Ad
sa|qeAed Suipueisinp

¢-120C A4

€¢-TC0T A4
3|qeA1a3a.4 Suipueising

¢C-120¢C AMd

€Z-CC0C M
Buipueisino asjueseng

CZ-TZ0T M

€2-7T0C M
uoljelauUNWaY

¢C-120T Ad

€£2-7207 A
uonnquIue)

CC-T20C A4

£2-2207 A
PaAIaI3y puapiaiq

COTE0T A
€C-TC0T Ad
1UdWaJnl04d [e0)

C-T20T Ad
€2-220¢C Ad
papiao.id ssueul4

Isnaj Aunjelg
dnoug
saahojdw3

Jbdo

pun4 1uapinoig
pPa3wI 35d0

|[ouuosiad
Juawadeue]
Aay|

Jo sanne|ay

|ouuosiad
juswaseuelp
Ay

JdHO

1420

suoioesues |

(42 u1 seadny)

SM0||0j se aJe saled pajejal YUm suonaesues)




1e1ol

ST'¢ 90 0L'1

0S0 60°0 (03740] 04D epued Jewny uly

(4 €00 810 Aieranas Auedwor 00yeg Jewny jueseg LIg

L0 LT0 SS0 uonesadQ J4013341Qg oy ueluey seuep

€L°0 LT0 950 4032311 SuiSeuey esjedeyoly Jewny jueseld
lelol| Aed ajqersep| Aeq paxig uoneusdisag 3aAojdwa ay3 jo swep

€20T'TE Yd.ey papua Jeah ay) Joy sjpuuosiad [eladauew Aay 101D spelaq




(10
00°SP6 SY : JBIA SNOIABIg) 1D O/ FTL SY (s@aueApe 4o 13u) 104 papiroid Jou pue s}IeIUD [eydes uo paindaxa aq 03 Sululewsl $19e41U00 JO 1unouwie pajewnsy
sjuawwwo) (e)
(404 papinoud jou Juaixa ay3 o)) sanuadunuo) gs

"Papinoid Jou si 80T Sy puj Jad se pasinbai UOl3eLIOjUl JUBWISAS “19B) DAOGE JO MIIA U] *3NUBASI paulqwod jJo %01
UBY] $S9] SI dnuanal Jo swiia) ui s393f0aq [9pAH IUIIAI wouy uonessuas aouis Ajiesedas ajqeiodal Jou NG JUaWI33S sSaUISNg SUO uey) 10w sey Auedwod ay)
Sunioday Juawsdass ge

(zv99) 06't¢s (sy) a1eys AseuipiQ sad s8ujuiez painjig 1 JIseq
00°000T 00°000°T (sY) saaeys Aseuipag jo anjea jeuiwon
v16'v2'28'T ¥S6°20°09°'T Sd3 Pain|ig g diseq 1oy saseys AseulpiQ Jo "ou aSesane pa1ysiom

(eg'zot) 66°6£8 Sd3 pan|ig 8 diseg Joy - siapjoyaseys Aseuipio o3 sjqeInqune 11j0.d

2 = (xe1 jo 18u) uonod painyip soy pied 2q 0} JUNowy :55a37

(€8-zot) 66'6€8 Xey Jajje 1yo.d

wmoN €202 ‘T€ Ydiey papua Jeap siejnailed

1€ Yoie papua Jeaj '

(42 u1 saadny)
'suoneindwoo aseys sad sgujutes paynjp pug dIseq sy} U1 pasn ejep saleys pue swodul ay) $1239|}24 3|qe) Suimo||oy 3y |
(Sd3) a4eys sad Suiuie3 z¢

Sluswiaiels |eldueuly ays jo 1ied Suiwaoy sajop
Paiiwi] uoiesodio) uonesausn Jamod eysipo



‘Juawiedap Ag1sua ayy Aq Juswuianog ay) woJ} jenoidde uo Jajem
o:mEL_Eﬁ.md uad Ja1e 940 Aq pawiep / pains| Apeasje sadieyd ay) aniem 03 (1) "1no) y8iH 9jq,uoy

PHS-BUPHSINDI 0) "1dap 32unosal Jarem 9yl (1) pap1ap zz'z1'9T uo PIay Sunssw e uj eysipo ‘ Aleyaidas
03 S2uaJajal yam ey ur uoseal ay) Suid agieyd 94l SAIEM 03 DdHO 01 $19)13] |BIIASS UM Sey

J9d0 =@suodsau u|'zT0z L0 TS 1P OPT9 OU J2113] BY) 01 3DUBIBYI YIIM INOIAIISII PRYEIIH WOy 131em Jo |emelp ay) jsuieSe ASiaua J0O ss0| 40} uonesuadwod

SPABMOY EC0T'VO'TT PIP €2-2202/98T/INOD'N/dIHH/IIHO OU 13333] 3pin 19dHO Aq Pasiel 13 15Tz sy JO PUBLISP SIPNIUI SI3YI0 PUE SI0JIRIIUOD JO SwWie|)

‘Juswpedaq 224n0say J31em Q0D 0} A1e1audas ledidulld 01 awes ay3 Jo jealem uo
04 sey juswiiedsq ASisuz Qoo o3 Auejadag ledidulg ‘awes ayy jo asuodsal u
09 jJo Juawiiedsg ASiauz 03 Adoo e Y3IM BYSIPQ JO JUBWIUIBA0D 4O Judwiedaq

92.Nn0say J91eM 0} ZZOZ'L0'LO PSiep STTT OuU J2119|'T0Z°ZT'ST Paiep IzoE ou 49138] ¥T0Z'90'07 Palep $98T ou 49M3] P10Z'90°70 paiep 1981 ou
49H3] UsHUM sey D9dO dwes 0} sasuodsal uI'€T0Z'20°80 PIP 66T6/AAIN "ON PUBWSP 0] 35UBJ3431 YIIM JIOAIISD] PNYBJIH WoJy |meap Ja1em jsuiese 1sasaul
SJUeleq pue ] /8'T 'sy 03 Sununowe Ayeusq spiemoy ‘BlANG UOISIAIQ WeQ ule\ Aq pasied 1) 57z sy JO PUBWISP $3PN|IUI SIYI0 PUE SI01IBIIUOD JO SWiIe|)

"9N0QE 33 Ul papnpoul Jou U3y pue paulelsadse Jou s ajqedrdde J9ARIBYM pUBLUBP SAOGE UO 1S3I31U]|

6T0C’LO'TT P3IeP 6ESS OU 42N PUB KTOZ'90°ST PIP S/ ZS OU 48119| papieml
‘leAtem Jo uoseal ayy Sund swes sy jo [eAlem 104 (00D) BYSIPO JO 1USWIUIA

ZE'86TT (ov'1¥) 29°06T IT°6v0°T |el0l
! : a|qel] Apuasunuol
i I Ve s1 Auedwo) ay3 yaiym 1oy Asuow 194310
89'vT (roeg) 6S'T €97 saajuesengd yueg Suipueising g
YT 0’1 (89) €0'681 20'298 SJ3410 pue s1039811U03 JO swie|) (A1)
81’1l - 5 8V'T (xe3 321A3S) spuewap xe} 123.1pu) (1)
910 B 4 91'0 ( xe1 sajes) spuewap xey Paipu) (1)
0z'e (s6°0) . STy spuewap xe3} awoauj (1)
1g2p se pasdpajmouyde
jou Auedwo) ayj Jsutese swiep) ‘e
|esianay suonippy
€202 ‘1€ Yyuep 2Z0z |udy
uo se aduejeg €202 ‘T€ Yo\ papua seaj Suung 1ST uo se dduejeq Suiuadp sie|naiied

(42 ui seadny)
:sanljiqer] Juadunuo)

i
H__J.a\zé,? .

bR na3

(1)
(1)

sapuadunuo) (q)
Sjuawele)s [enueuly ay3 jo Jaed Sujwaoy sajop
payiwr] uoijeiodio) uoielauan Jamogd eysipo




1dJ0 03 papinoad 1) 95 pET sy JO 991URIEND 91eJodio) sapnjoul ajqer) Apuasuruoa si Auedwod 241 yorym 1oy Asuow 1ay1o  (11a)

'92UB19431 JO SWIBY By} U0 PaaISe Sey $3INJ D) JAPUN PAINYISUOD IBUNGHL |e2IguY 3y3 pue uoneniqie 10} 91 H/p08SZ OU 958D JPIA I 210J3q
17871 Aq pajy Apeauje sem sayiew ayy pue UORINASUOI YO 404 (1°87) PIT 0Igno| g uasie] Aq pasies 19 LE'00E "SY SIPN|oUI SI9YI0 puE 51030811UOD JO SWie)) (iA)

"BSSIIQ JO 1Nno) YSiH 3)q,uoH Ag pajuiodde amjo7 g uepelA (*piay) 2d13snr
4N 101eRIqUe 9105 Y] 210434 10BIU0D puod yse 341 woyy BuisLie s1aylo pue Ajedol 3uipn|pul swiejd snowea Jo uonedpnlpe oy wiep sy pajy sey 13gS (1)
"020Z/8€6Y°ON d1S Ul EIpU| JO 1NO) swiaidng a.40jaq ased e Pl PeY pue ss|ny 00z J9pun paquasa.d sajel P10 JO peaisul 9107 ‘@Iny DININO
49pun paquasald sajes pasueyua 9y} 1ad se Ayehoy jo uondnpap 3uidus|ieys 1suiede 13gs Aq pasies 13 $8°861 Sy $9pNjaUl S19Y10 pue SI01JBIIU0D JO Swie|) (n)
"131dV 2|9,U0H 31042q 3uipuad s ased ay} pue 1314y 9|q,UoH
943 JO J3pJo 3y} Sulusnesuod n1H Aq Aydedes papuesss jo suondwnsse Asesyique pue doyy diy ay3 Buiduajieyd zz0z'L0'8Z U0 243D 240429 J3pulofau sy pajy
SBY D9d0'2404) 88'ZTT'SY Se sagieyd Hawysinbuljas pasinai ay) pasoisal pue ay1 N1d Aq yoeq pajjes saie) ‘@84yed Juswysinbuias spiemoy Sutuoisinoud 1oy
PaJ3pISUOD sem ydiym J) 4°GT Sy 40 junowe ue 1o} uonendwodas Jaye 6T0Z/dIN/O8E ON ase) ul JY3D 310434 71D9d Agq paieis se Ayjiqel| ayy ‘s8uipasdoud
494uny Jo uonedpnue ul pue andsip Jspun Sl 13new ayy sy "adipnigns Jspun si sajzew ay) pue JY¥3D B 13LdV 240j2q sadieyd ayj e jo uoiaalgo
pasiel sey 3940 "sadieyd Juawysinbuias pue uolssiwsuesy Jamod Jsujede 71094 pue 11400 Aq pasied 13 99°1GT sy sapnjpour 13430 pue S1010BIIU0D JO swie) (A1)
Sjuawajels jeoueuly ay3 jo 1ied Suiwioy sajoN

Pa1iwi] uoiesodio) uonelsusy Jamod eysipQ



187258 18'725°8 18'2¢5'8 = - - |B30]
89'8vE 89°8YE 89'8¥E 1ge1| [e1dueuly 18yl
61°0T0'8 6T°0T0'8 | 6T°0TO'8 sSuimouiog
6°€9T ¥6'E9T v6°€9T s9jqeded Jayjo pue apes)
3 sanljiqen jeueuly
S9'670'T S9'6Y0'T | S9°6¥0'T 2 - 2 |elo)
L9°FE L9°vE L9FE S135SE |elaueuly Jayi0
8Tt 1 8Tt Sueo’
8E'0LS 8E'0LS 8E'0LS SB|qeAIDI3I Bpel]
80'€TC 80'€TT 80'€TC S9JUB|Eq yUBq puE Yse)
ETLTT ET'LTT €TLIZ SJUBLUISIAU|
S195SE |BlDURUlY
diysuoneal diysuoneal
anjep Bu8pay u1jou Bu8pay u) 550] %3 3joud Jo Juawaleys .
njeA e i = eIAl JE
FERJIE1E0L BuiAue) e pesipodly sjuawnJsul sjudWinJIsul DO B anen aeg y&nouyy anjea Jie4 RANG TR RN AR Sy
|elop BAlBALIRQ BAIlBALIDQ
(42 ur seadny)
vS'9e8°L ¥S'9E€8°L | p59E8L 2 : = - 12301
0T'S9T 01°S9T 0T'S91 s213jIgel| |elueuly 12410
0E'SLE'L 0E€'SLE'L | 0E'SLE'L sguimouiog
1962 ¥1°96C ¥1°96C sa|qehed Jaylo pue apes|
sanljiqel) |eppueury
PEBEL'T YEGEL'T PEGELT = - = - I1ejoL
L6°SE L6°SE L6'SE S1asSe |elueUY J3Y10
06°'€ 06°€ 06°E sueoq
SSPOE'T SSTYOET | SSKOE'T S|QBAIDI3I B3PI
69°LLT 69°LLT 69°LLT sadue|eq jueq pue yse)
€C°L1T ETETT €TLTT SIUIWISIAUY
S}asse |epueuly
diysuonejaa diysuonejaa
anjep 150) Swidpay uijou 3wBpay u 550| '8 3404d }O Juswaiels
an e 3 4 e
IShea 0y Juidne) pasiowy sjuawnsui sjuawnasul o yanoay) anjen seq ShoE s it ey
_r jelol SAlleALIaq SAlBALIRQ

(4D ur saadny)

“195se [BIDUBUY JO SsBpD Yoea jo 1radsal ul
30 SIIEIDP DY "SJUBWNASUI [BIDUBULY UIEIUOD JRYY SLUBYI 133YS 2JUB|Eq UO UonEeLwLIojul [eUOlIppE Sapiaoid pue

€207 ‘T€ Y2JBIA 1€ SE SINIIGeRI| 73 51355 |RIDURUY JO A10S318) 4989 Jo anjen Jtey pue junowe Sulhiied ay) sjuasald ajges Suimo)jo) ay |

‘paziudodal ale sasuadxa pue WOdUI Y2IYMm UO SiSeq 3yl pue juaw

sanljiqel) pue syasse jepueuly (e)

SIUBLINEIS [e1IURUI DU 03 /T S)0U Ul PISO|ISIP B4E JUBWNISUI AJINDS pue Aljiger| |eIDUBULY

2INSEa JO siseq 3yl ‘uoniu802as J0) BRI BY) Suipnpur ‘saijod Suijunoioe ueayiuss
Auedwo) ayj ioj spuawnnsul |e1IUBUL JO 22UEIIUSIS BY) JO MBIAIBAO UE SBAIF LOIJIBS syl

SIUBWINIISU] [BIDUBUI4 UO 2unSOPSI Th

Sluawalels [eueuly ayl jo 1ed Suiwiog sajon
paywi uonetodio) uoneIBUAD JAMOJ BYSIPO



"33uel JeY) UIYNIM ANeA Jigj 1O B1RWNSS $JUasDId3 1500 BY) pUE SJUBWAINSEAL anjen Jiey 3|qissod a3uel spim e 5| 3say) asnedaq anjen ey ay3 ajewxoidde s)uswIsAAUL P3IONBUN 4O 1509 3yL

Sp'SZs9 9€'L66'T T8°725'8 182258 sanljiqel] |eDUBLL SAIJEALIP -UOU |BI0L
67 LLSHE 89°8vE 89'8PE Saijiqel] [elaueuly JBYI0
Sy 0b'65T 6 E9T P6'EIT sa|qeded apeJ)
00'815°9 6T°Z6¥'T 61°010'8 61°010'8 uoa13y3 15a1a3ul Suipnjaul sfuimoliog
P S3IY|IGEI| [BIDUBULY BAIBALIAP -UON
S1eaA G ueyy alop sieah 1B3A T UBY} 5597 SMOJ}
junowe SulAlie)
G - T usamiag ysed |enyaesjuor)

2202 1€ Yale 1e sy

{12 ur saadny)

* ELPYT'D 18'T69'T ¥S"9E8'L tS'9£8°L Sa1M|IgeI| [BIDUBUL SAIIEALIDP -UOU [B}O]
= e 887791 01°'591 0T'S9T s2131]1qel| |e1aueuY JaYI0
= 50°0T 60982 $1°967 Y1°967 sajqeded apes]
= 9P'ZET9 v8Tre'l 0E'SLE L 0E'SLE'L uoa.3Y1 153131u1 Suipnjdul sSuimoliog

S2N1|Iq.I| |E1DURULY BANBALIDP -UON

sieak SMojy
s1eaA 5 ueyy 310 1eal T uey ss:
el W S - T usamiag EHEss Ysed |enyoenuo)

€202 'TE YIBW 38 sy

Junowe 3uiAise)

{13 ur'saadny)

$I5BG PRUN0ISIpUn Ue U S3aNI]IGeI] [BI2UBULY SAIIEALIAP UOU S,AuBdWO) 3Y) 10} 3jqeAed 353133U1 BUIPN|OUI SMO) YSED paledidiue ayj Jo sishjeue AjInlew e smoys ajqe} Suimoj|o} ay)  (p)

‘sjuawaainbay
J1ad se 3sn 4o} 2|gejieA. 3Je SPUNY JRY} 3INSUI puEe Aupinbi) Juadiyns viejulew o3 si Juswaseuew ysu Aupinby) jo annsalgo ay) “suonesigo |e13ueuly sy 333w jouued Auedwod 2y 3yl Xsu Y3 0} $13j2. ysu AUpInbIT ysiy Aypin

"$Y514 UOHEIJUBIU0 SB ||9M SB SS3UILLIOMIIP3II JO UCIIRIOLDIZP
40451 34} pUE 3Ne3P 40 s 1I341P 3Y) Y104 $as5edWI0IU3 YsL 1IPaL) "SUORESIO IO SWIS) [BN1IRIUOD 3y3 03 uip.039e 1Gap 321AIBS 10 Aedas 03 aunjiey ALiediaiunod woly Suisue ssoj |BIDUBUL JO 3S1) BY) I YjS11 1paLD) = ysiy Mpasd (1)

“Adeinade ajqeuoseas yum pajipaid Ajjewou ag Jouued sjuswWaAOW JRyIRW ayads ainyng “sadueyd Jaylew Jayjo pue Aupinby ‘suoiyenyanyy 3sud Aunba ‘sajes 28ueyaxa Aduauina us|a10} ‘sa1e) 153J91U1 Y} Ul saduey? joynsaJe se
a3ueyd Aew JUBWINIISU [EI3UBULY B JO BNjRA Y] JUSWINISUI [e12UBUY e Jo 321id BY) Ul 95ueyd B WOJy INsal Aew Jey) SmO)) ysed 24N3nj UL 10 S3N|RA JIRY D|GRZIRAI UL ‘SBUILIED 2.NJNJ U] SSO| AUB JO YSLI DY SI YSLI 1Y RN - * YSIH IIEIN (1)
‘@JueApe Ul sBululea paldadxa 3y Jo anjea [erdueUlY 3y} Suluiwialap pue sBuluies 03 AJjiqe1dipaid 1a3ea18 Suinaiyde Ag (m
"ueld ssauisng s Auedwo) ay3 uo suonemIN) 33es 153133U1 pue Adua.ind jo edws ay3 Suidnpas pue Juswuoliaua Sujuueld ssauisng 9jqels e Suigean Ag (1)

-03 SWIE %}IOM3WIR .Y JUIWSSRUBLY YSH BY "S5 1P PUB SYSU 3B 153I3]U| SB 4ons senlIqel] pue S)3sse |eUBUL 3y} YIM PIIRIJOSSE SYSLI Y] SI2A0D YIIYM Adnjod Juawaseuew ysi e sey Auedwo) ayy
‘SJUBINIISUI [RIDUBUYY )1 JO BNjRA JIB) 3y) 1oedw Aj3sIaApE ABLU yaIym 4511 1paud pue Aypinbi| ‘sajel 3saaiu1 03 Ajuewiid pasodxa si Auedwo) ay3 ‘ssauisng 531 Jo 35iN03 3y3 uj

juawadeuew ysu [epueuly  (3)

TTOZ 1€ YIIBW PUB £Z07 "TE YIIBIN P3PUS SIEAA 3U] 10} 7 [9A9] PUB T [9A37] USIMI2 SI3J5UBL) OU U3 aney 2yl (m)

pua JeaA yoea je pajiodas sjunowe 2y3 wouy Juasayip aq Aew sajep uniodal anndadsal ayy

01 Juanbasgns sluaLuNLsuI [BIDUBULY 3Y) JO ANJRA Jigy 3] 'YINs sy 'S918p 3A133dS3 40 Se suoilIesuel) 3jes ul pred Jo pazieal aney pjnos Auedwo) ay3 1eyy sunowe ay |je o 2anedIPUI AjLIBSS323U 10U AR 2A0qe pajuasald sajewnysa
anjen Jie} 3y} ‘suawnisul [eIaueUY [je Ajjenuelsqns 1oy ‘a105013y ] “anbiuya) uonewIsa Aue Ul SUOENWI| JUSISYU IR 3I3Y] “ISAIMOH ‘Siuawinisul [e1ouRulY 53 JO Anjea Jiey Y3 Buljewnsa Ul Judwaspnl 15aq 531 sasn Juawadeuely
‘paJnsealu Ajqeija1 aq Jouued s3uawlsaaul Anba pajonbun ay jo 13adsas u anjea Jiey ay |

"3N|eA Jiey Jlayl 03 |enba Ajajewixosdde s yoiym 3503 pazijiowe je pajels ale Salll|iqel| pue S}asse |e1JUBUl WJI3)-1I0YS 3y

"3N|eA Jiej Je paunseaw 'saseys Aynba pajonbun i Juawisaau 1e A10831e3 S1Y3 Ul SWaAY ulewW Y] Elep 13x.eWw
2Iqe|tene U0 paseq A2y} a1e JOU JUILLNIISUI JLIES BU] Ul SUOIIESUR.] J2IEW JUBLINI 3|GRAIDS]O wouy saoud Aq payioddns Jayyieu ale jey) suondwnsse uo paseq [powW uonenjea e Suisn ‘led Ul 10 D|OYM Ul PIUIWIIIAP B SIN|RA
die4 “(sindul ajqensasqoun) elep 1ayJew a|geAISsgo UO Paseq Jou 3ue 1ey3 syndui Buisn paunsealw satyjiqel| pue s1asse [edueuY sapnjIu; Ayaes

40 [2A3) 51y (€ jan@7) sandul 3jqeasasqoun jueayiudis ypIm sanbiuysa) uonenjep

'S}IBJIUOD 3ANBALISD (J10) 123Un03-3Y3-1an0 5 Auedwo) sapnjoul Aydseaiy jo 93] s1yj “(saauid woly panuap a1} Appaaliput Jo (sadud se “a'1) Apdaup 1eyus ‘Aupgen)

10 19558 3y} 10J B|BAISSqO BJe JRY) T [9ADT UIYNM papnjaul sadiid pajonb ueyy Jayio syndur Suisn paunseaw ‘Sa1yIjiqel| pue sjasse [erauRUl sapNUL Aydlelay jo a3 siy) (z [@aa7) sindu 3jqensasqo ym sanbiuyasy uonenjep

'SJUILISIAUL PUNY [BNINW PUR SIUBWINIISUI Jgap a3e10d10d pajonb ‘saJeys Aunba pajonb ul Juswisanu
Bl| JO 513558 |BIRUSP! JO) SIAXJEW anijae ul (palsnipeun) sasiid pajonb o) 82ua13ja.1 Aq painseaw ase jeyl sjasse |e1dueuly sapnjaul Aydielaiy Jo [aaa) syl (T 12A97) 19>4eW aande ue ul saoud paionp

40 51515u02 A108318D S1y ] *sa

‘E 19487 01 1 |9A=7] 0JUI pRANOJE ‘anjen Jiej 1 UOIUS0I2I |e1ILI 0] juanbasqns painseaw aJe jey) SjusWNIIsUL [BIDUBUY JO SiSAjeue ue sapiaoid Suimojjoyay) ()
Sjuswaiels [eRpueuly ay) jo 1ied Sulwioy 310

paiiwi] uoile10dio) UONEIDUID JBMOd BYSIP:



‘JUR3X2 18] 03 pUNY IO JUN0IJE yueq 3)eledas 03 Junowe Jusdsun Jo Jajsuesy 03 pJedal yum 12y ssiuedwo) ayl
40 (8)SET U01235 10 (S)SET UORIBS JO suoisinoid ay1 yum Ajdwod 03 paainbal Jou si ‘AjSuipioaoe pue £z0z YdJe ISTE 18 papusa Jeah 3y} Joj S1UBWRLLIS [BIDUBLILY 3Y) UI JUNOWE ¥S) Juadsun spJemol Aujiqe Aue aney j,usaop Auedwod ay],
uoisiA0.d ay3 uj suswanow ayl ‘uonedi|qo [enjoesiuoa e ojul

VN VN L
3uLa1ua Aq pauinoul AJjigel) e 03 19adsal yum speuw s uoisiaoid e J3YMm
I'N IIN suonaesues Aued pajejas jospielaqg| 9
"adnidnuisesyu) Anunwwo) jo yuawdojeaag "2JnjanJiselju] Ajunwwo) jo uawdojanag

‘speaysanQ /Bulionuoly Juswdolsasp |jiNs [BUOIIEIOA pUB JUBWIBIYEYUT|‘SPEAYISAQ /FUlIOIUON ‘JUBWAO[BASP ||14S [BUOIIBIOA puE JuswWadyeyuy
pooyiaar ‘Sujuiea) suods jeiny ‘siem Supjuuqg ses ‘uoneanps ‘yyesy pooylaan  ‘SBuluies)  spods  jeiny  ‘asiem Bupjulig  syes  ‘uoneanp3
SAUBASI4 WUBWUOPABP || |EUOHEIOA pue JusWwsIyeyul PoOyI2AIT| ‘Y3EaY dAIIUBARId ‘JUSWdOJIAIP ||I3S [EUOIIEIOA puE JUaWasyeyu3z pooyl|aa]

SINIAIIOR ¥SD Jo aunieN| §

llejuioys sieaA snoiaaad jo jeyol| ¢

I'N JeaA 3yl Jo pus aylie |jejuoys| €

960 j aa pa.unoul sunjipuadxa jo Junowy| g

N I'N 1eaf sy} Bulinp Auedwod ayy Aq Juads aq 03 paJinbal unowy| T

CZ0T°E0'TE 1B S5Y E£Z0Z'E0'TE 1B SY sie|ndijed|oN |s
T{IJur soounyj
Py Sauedwo)
SULJO NIA BINPaYIS Ul palydads aue ydiym sa1AROE 3533 Uo Jeah ay) ySnouy) paziian Ajuewud a1am spuny ay ) oy 2y Jad se Auedwod ay) Ag pawiio) usaq sey aspwWWod YsI v s323load Juswdo|aaap |eind pue ja12d 6T-aINOD
‘JB1191 J33SESIP ‘AY|IGRUIRISNS JUBLILOIIAUD ‘Uoney|igeyal pue aied 91N}ISaP ‘21e3YIERY ‘BINYND pue e ‘uoneanpa unjowoud ‘uonuinujew pue Jaguny jo uonedipels sie sal}IAIIE YSD J0) Seale 3yl saianoe (¥s) Aljiqisuodsal
|e120s a1e10d100 Uo sJedA [eIDURUY 931Y) Sulpadaud Alereipawiwi ayy 1oy 11304d 10U a8esane sy J0 %g 1sea) 1e puads 03 spasu ‘pjoysaiyy Ajiqesydde ayy Sunssw ‘Auedwon e ‘€107 PV s2iuedwo) 3y} jo GET uoi3as Jad sy
(4S2) ALIMIGISNOCSIY TVID0S ILYHOLHOD 37

‘s1auenb

2A1102d531 104 4D T8°Z "SY PUB JD 0E°0°SY (07 T) SY * 1) TS sy 2Je Auedwod U140 JUNOIIL JO $300q pue suORNNISUL [BIDURUY 0 $jUBQ YINS Yypm Auedwio) aya Ag pajy (s103g3p 3y3 Jo sishjeue Suiade O SJUBLUBIEIS PUE ‘SIUBWIAIRIS
199p 4004 ‘SJUBWILIS 320)S) BuisLIAWOI SIUSLISIEIS PUB SUINJRI AlISHEND Ul 33UBJ3IP Y 'S13SSE UMD 40 A311n395 40 SISeq BY3 UO SUCHNIISUI [2IIUBULY 10 SYUB WO M [ended Fupom pauonoues usaq sey Auedwo) ay |

(T96T 1V xe1 3Wwodu| 3yl Jo suoisiroid Jueaz|ad J2Yjo Aue Jo ASAIns

40 YaJeas ‘se yans) TIET 10 XeL BUI0OU| 3L} JIPUN SJUBWISSISSE Xe) BY] Ul Jeak 2y} BULINp BWOJUI SB P3SOISIP JO PRIBPUBLINS UFAQ SBY JBY) SIUNOIIL JO 000 Y] Ul PAPICIal 10U 51 Yaym uonoesuedy yons Aue jou aney Auedwol ayy A

‘Salledlyauag a1ewn|n |yl Jo Jeyaq uo ay1] 3yl Jo Ajundas ‘aajuesend Aue apinoid 'q
Jo ‘(sauepyauag atewn)n) Aued Suipuny ay Jo jjeyag uo 1o Ag JaAg0s eYm JauueW Aue Ul paljuBP! SA1313UE 10 SU0SIDd J3LI0 Ul 1SIAUI JO pua| Aj1Ra.IpUl 10 Aj1DaUIp i
‘lleys Auedwo) ay) 1ey (asimIayio Jo Sunum g papJodal Jsyiaym) Suipueisispun ayl yum (Aued Suipung) sannua ugizi04 uipnjaul ‘(sal)Anua Jo [s)uosiad Aue wouy puny Aue paai@dal Jou aney Auedwo) sy In
SaleIdBUSY S1BWINN Y1 4O JlEYSq UO JO 0] 31| Y3 Jo AJundas ‘ea3uelensd Aue apiaoid g
10 ‘(sauelyauag a1ewnl|n) Auedwiod 3yl Jo Jieyaq uo 1o Ag Jaa30sieym Jauuew Aue Ul palIauap! s31113ua Jo suosiad JaY10 ul 1S3AUL JO pud) AjpaadIpul Jo Apdaaip e

‘lleys Aleipawasiu) ayl 1eyl Suipuelsiapun ayy Yum (saueipawiaiul) ssnnus ugisioy Fuipnpu) ‘(sar)inua Jo (s)uosiad Jayyo Aue 0} spuny paisaaul 10 paueo] Jo pasueape jou aney Auedwor ay) A
"USB SBM 31 U2IYM 104 TRy} LB J9YI0 sa50dind 10} SUOININSUI [BIURUL PUE SYUBQ W) STUIMO1I0G BY) PIsN J0U sey Auedwo) ayy Al
“19pus| Jay3o Aue Jo suonNuIsUL [BIURUL IO jueq AU Aq J33NeJap Njim e se paeap Jou sey Auedwo?) YL
“4ea |epueuly ayy Juunp Aousing [enpia 10 A2us1ind 01dAID Ul paISaAUl 10 papeJy jou aney Auedwo) sy
“Aadoad jweuag Aue Buipjoy oy Auedwo) ayy jsulede Suipuad o Pajeniul uasq sey Suipaadoad Aue assym ‘Auadoud lweuag Aue saey jou op Aueduwiod Yyl !
uoneuwuoyu) Aioyensay g Alonieis 1aylo [a4
Sjuawale)s |epueuly ayl jo ued Suiwaoy sajon

panwi uonelodio) UoKREIBUBD JIAMOJ BYSIPO




1eah s SIUBWISIAUI
4eaA Juaund ve0 y Syiawysany| a3elany ALsLan] uaWSaAU| uo wmdy| 11
Ul PaAdal puapialp 03 anp SI aJueleA - it uo (932 spuapiaig) s8uiuey
(Aue
1qe xe) pauajeqg
ue
3500 3dueuy 310jaq s8uiulea Jaysiy u - - + BB e Xe1p pakojdw jendes uo wmay| ot
pa3Insal snuaAal U asesnul Juedyudis 1500 @oueuyy aJojaq Sujules
+Y1om 33N 3jqiSue ]
= pakojdwa jeyde)
1e3A Jus.LIND Ul pauues 114014 %Zv9 (#0'0) 6T°0 suonesadQ wouy anuanay| powad ayj Joy (ss01) /14014 % Ol3eY 11J01d I8N 6
Saljjiqen uaun)
'S2|es Ul asea.nul Juediiusis| %6188 (££72) 19°'ThE |B10] - 19SSy JualIn) suonesadQ wolj anuaaay saw] uj o1ey Janouuny |eyded 18N ]
[e101 = [eyde) Supjiom
‘pousad snoiasad o3 pouad Sujuodas ayy ui |eli3ley mey
atedwod ul anjea aseyaund ug 9SBRUDUI[%TE 1 8 sheq Jo 'SON .{sojqeAed| 0 aseyaing + apesy ul 32015, Sawil] uj ol1ey Janouuny sajqeded apes) 2
uedyiudis saydw sAep ajgeded Jaydiy 9ped) adesany}|  Jo aseydungd = aseydund 19N
pouiad
A
%6T 9 v Aupioda) s uUsieg suolesadQ Wolj anuaaay sawil] u| 011BY JBAOUIN] SD|GRAIDIDY Bpel] 9
J0 "SON .{s3|qeaiaday
apel] adesany)
apeJ) ul 32015 pue ssaidoud
1 Ul 30/ ‘SPo0D paysiuly
_— 5 5 (z/22uejeq uison J0 sauojuanul ul adueyd il oney Jarowin] AJOJuBAY| c
+8ujuadp) yo031s afessay|  + aped ul 301s Jo saseyaing
+ pPaWNsuo) |eualew
150D = p|os spood 40 150D
SoueleA ansod Anb (Aue y1) puapialg aoua.aya.d
pajnsas JesA juauny jo Ajgenoid|%s1g (so0) vED A mMm.Lmsm Lmﬁ Mxm v.._m%_m s wm (30¥) Aunb3 uo uiniay 4
$s0]  JeaA  snomeud pasedwod sy REIRIES % JEAELISEA Y o
$9s5uadxa yses-uou 13
Jeah Juauiino sy ur Aypgejoad SHIMARTRE IRdINIg 153491u xmm_ucwaxw m_._:m_\_hwwm
&
! yiur g 50 ot + sjuawhed asea) pue ! | sauwny u| oney 38esan0) 2IMS1G2a| €
03} anp Ajuiew s1 ¥YI5Q Ul aseadsp ay) Used UON + Saxe} Ja)e 1yo.d
158491U] = 221M35 1g3Q
19N = 92IMBS 193 404 Buiule]
Jeak Suipodal jo wyoad aanisod
: ; ane- . . Ainb3 je30 Suimouiog [e1o s3] u oney Aunb3-19sg 14
0} s|geInquNE Aunba jgep Jameg %0E LLe S6'T HNDb3 |ej0) 1 g |ej1oL Lyl
ueo) jeyded Sujiom Jo wioj ay) ul
qel| ua.und ul asealdul JuedudisioTy- T T Saijigen yuaun) |ejo §13SSY JUa4In) |ejoy sawi] uj oney jus.un) T
40 junodde uo Ajulew si aseasddp ay)
dduelIEA J0j UOSEIY| BdUBLIBA % KERECTE SN 4L 3E 10jeulwouaq lojesawny spun soney| 1s
Popua Jea) | youely papua Jeap
soiley A2y bt

Sjuawalels [eueuly ayi jo yed Suiwioy sajop
palwI] uones0dio) UoIBIBURD JISMOJ BYSIPO



J ¢ZL008Z0 *NIQ ¥S0S€EC60 “NId

10122410 SuiBeuey 10123110 m..wa,. B 2n  :s1eq
(enedeyoinyd) ( eusr jewey eAepniy) Jemysaueqgnyg : ade|d

96/250 "ON diysiaquialp|
192130 [eldUeRUL JaIYD AJe191035 Auedwo) i

(epyed Jpwny uly) ( ooyes sewny ejueseq) et e
JTZTRIE :ON Sy w4
SJUBIUNOJDY paJaley)

pJeog ay) 4o jjeyaq uo pue 104 0D 3 e4YsIA Aey y8uis Jo4
ﬁ "payoeiie odal Jno Jo swial uj

‘}314E] JO UONRUIWIRISP 0] 193dSal YIM 1UN0d 3waidns 9|q,uoH Jo |eacudde 0] 129[qns ‘(g0od) a1ep uonesado

[BDISWIWOD 3y3 Wouy sieah Gz 10J21S Sd11 S) 18 D940 40 199l04d Jamoy A\d 1e|oS pasodoud ay1 wouy Jamod A 0§ 4O Juawaindoid 10y jeaoidde ajdipund ur uani8 sey 0JaINO (A1)
(1D 641°€) ST : (4D 8ES'6) S 40 o11es A)Nba 3Gap yum 1) £T£ZT 40 1509 193(0id

B Im uonels usmod jewsay] g e |jj-a8e3s 10aloid uoisuedxa 29d0 12pun MIN 099 Aoeded Jo s3un oMl JSYIOUE JO UOIIONIISUOI 104 jeaosdde sjdipund-ul uanig sey goo ayy ()

'CZ0T'E0'PT PAIep U0 pjay Bull@aw Gzz 118y} Ul 510193.17 J0 pieog Aq paiies usaq Sey >Jom pies ay| "0z:08 jo Alnba 1gap y8noayy papuny usaq aey
1500 303[0.d €101 Y1 2207 T0'ST PIEP T202/66 PUE TZ0ZTTE0 PRIRP TZ0Z/99 J9PI0 3pia 1503 1p2f0id ayy panoidde sey H¥30 ‘7 '8 T HUN JO UOHESIUIPOIA 7§ UOIIBAOUSY 104 (1)

“JOSIAPY UOI1BISUBL] 8] 03 pPalewilul udag aouls
SBY SwWes 3yl pue ssanoJd ayj [93ued 0] UOISSIIBP S) parewiul €20Z°90°C0 paiep Ja13| apin 009 "ss220.d 3Y1 10) JOSIAPY UOIIEISUE] BY) Se pagedua sem palwiy s1syie [euded
19S ‘S/IN29d0 Ul 009 Jo 3uIp|oyaleys %6l 4O JUBWISBAUISIP 10} EZOZ'TO'ET P91BP TG ON UO1EIYNOU IpIA (]03F)3IS3423U] JO UOISSIIdXT padaul pey(00D) eYSIPO 4O JUBWUIBA0D (1)
:pouad Suinsodal Jaye sjuanl 9y

‘Asessadau sanssaym padnoJBal /palyisse|das uaag aney saun8iy Jea) snoinalg St
Sjuawale)ls |epueuly ays jo ied Sujwuo) sajon
paiwi] uoijesodio) uoljeiaudn J3Mod BYSIPO




